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CHAIRMAN’'S STATEMENT

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Wang Tai Holdings Limited
(the "Company”) is pleased to present the consolidated results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

RESULTS

2014 is a remarkable year for the Company for its successful initial
public offering and listing of its shares on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 25
April 2014. The Company has raised net proceeds of approximately
RMB128.7 million.

The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") government had taken
an important measure to grant cotton farmers direct subsidies to
substitute the previous policy on purchases and storage for last three
years. A number of factors including the reform in cotton policy
and the fall in selling price of cotton reserve caused the downward
pressure on domestic cotton prices and the average selling prices of
our products especially in the second half of 2014. However, as a
result of the Group's effort, the average selling prices of our fabrics
and yarn products in 2014 maintained at a similar level as that in
2013.

Having said that, we remained to be committed to satisfy the
customers’ demand for the quality and timely orders of our products.
We achieved the targeted fabric production volume of around 37.9
million meters, representing an increase of approximately 9.5%
over the amount of last year. However, as the demand for the yarn
products decreased, the yarn production in 2014 was around 4,613.3
tonnes, representing a decrease of approximately 18.1% over the
amount of last year. As a result, the Group recorded a total revenue
of approximately RMB810.8 million in 2014 which was similar to that
of 2013.

Increase in selling expenses, administrative expenses and finance costs
with a share-based payment cost for the grant of the share options
dragged down the profit for the year from approximately RMB75.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2013 to approximately
RMBG66.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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OUTLOOK

We expect that the textile market may not turnaround very quickly
in the short run in 2015. The market price of fabrics and yarns may
still be under pressure and the demand for the products may still be
sluggish, but the price difference between domestic and overseas
cotton is expected to continue to stand at a reasonable range. Under
these circumstances, coupled with the progress made in cotton value-
added-tax pilot reforms in a number of provinces across the PRC,
cotton industry peers in the PRC are expected to be blessed with
new stimulus. The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are
cautiously optimistic about the prospect at this stage.

The Group commenced the overseas trading activities through its
Hong Kong subsidiary since August 2014 and the Directors expect
such activities will still carry on for the full year in 2015.

The Group commenced the construction of the second phase of Hubei
Production Facilities in the last quarter of 2014 and its operation is
expected to commence in the last quarter of 2015 or early 2016,
the expected turnaround time of the industry. The Directors will
keep monitoring the development on the textile market and make
necessary adjustment on our expansion plan where appropriate.
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appreciation to all our shareholders for their long-standing support. |
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW

During the year, attributable to the expanded fabric production
capacity over the past two years mainly from the establishment of
new Hubei Production Facilities, the Group’s revenue in 2014 was
approximately RMB810.8 million, which was similar to that of 2013.
However, net profit for 2014 decreased by approximately 11.4% to
approximately RMB66.4 million when compared to that of 2013,
mainly due to the one-off share based-expense for the grant of
options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, higher finance cost for
increased borrowings to finance the working capital and the increase
in selling expenses and administrative expenses for the operational
expansion.

INDUSTRY REVIEW

In 2014, the PRC's cotton textile industry faced challenges from
various aspects including the impact of the adjustment in cotton price
policy. As such, the domestic trade of cotton textiles was growing
under pressure.

In addition to the slackness in the market demand for cotton textiles,
cotton price policy reform was originally intended to be implemented
by making use of market-driven force, so that the price difference
between domestic and overseas cotton can be kept at a reasonable
range and the interests of cotton farmers can be protected, thereby
strengthening the competitiveness of the cotton textile enterprises
in the PRC. However, the change in cotton price policy had caused
downward pressure on the domestic cotton price, which had in turn
resulted in difficult operating landscape for domestic cotton textile
enterprises during 2014. With the gradual stabilization of cotton
prices, the tough situation faced by domestic cotton textile enterprises
is anticipated to be improved in a cautiously optimistic manner.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the revenue of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB810.8 million, which maintained at a
similar level as that of last year.

Revenue of the Group comprises sales of grey and dyed garment
fabrics and cotton yarns. During the year, fabrics continued to be
the major products the Group, which contributed to approximately
91.1% of the Group's total revenue for the year, amounting to
approximately RMB738.7 million, representing an increase of
approximately 8.6% when compared to that of last year. The increase
was mainly fuelled by sales volume growth contributed by production
facilities expansion. The Group’s new production facilities installed in
the Hubei Production Facilities during the second half year of 2012
were commissioned to full production at high efficiency during the
full year of 2013 and improvement in the production utilization rate
further increased the production volume in 2014. For the year ended 31
December 2014, the production of yarn was hindered by the staggered
market demand and so the revenue decreased by around 21.0% to
approximately RMB87.9 million when compared to that of last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &8 E2tim R o4

The overall gross profit margin and the average selling price of fabrics
and yarns maintained at similar level over the last two years. Gross
profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2013 was 18.7%
whereas gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2014
was 18.4%. The average selling price of fabrics and yarns for the year
ended 31 December 2014 was RMB19.1 per metre and RMB19,064
per tonne respectively (2013: RMB19.7 per metre and RMB19,725 per
tonne respectively).

Increase in selling expenses, administrative expenses and finance
costs with a share-based payment expenses of approximately HKD5.1
million for the grant of the share options dragged down the profit for
the year from approximately RMB75.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2013 to approximately RMB66.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2014.

During the year, the Group increased its production volume by
capitalizing on its production capacities and enhanced sales by
adjusting product portfolio in response to the ever-changing market,
resulting in a reduction of its inventory level.

PROSPECT

There is fierce competition in the PRC's textile industry, yet the market
is immense and highly fragmented. As such, the market will be
embedded with ample room for rapid and sustainable development
of enterprises with promising strength. In 2015, the Group will
continue to focus on extending its reach into the domestic market,
retain the existing market presence and step forward to the overseas
trading market. We will be more determined than ever to enhance
our profitability by optimizing the existing product portfolio and
developing new products and improving quality products that meet
market demand.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group owned a total of approximately
30,000 spindles and 568 air-jet looms with the designed annual
production capacity of around 7,080 tonnes for yarn and 46,247
km for fabrics respectively. In 2015, the second phase of the Hubei
Production Facilities, which is under construction and is expected to
be completed by the fourth quarter in 2015. Upon completion of the
second phase, our fabric production capacity will be further increased
by at least 22,000 km.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EIE B3R 94T

Looking ahead, we need to strengthen our research and development
(the "R&D") capability. In 2015, the R&D centre of Hongtai China
Co., Ltd. is expected to be enhanced to become the Fujian Province
Technology Centre and the Group will consider establishing a public
samples centre. In order to accelerate R&D capability through the
samples centre, the Group will obtain the market demand information
and launch new fabric products with features such as anti-violet light,
breathable, comfortable, etc. With the interaction of R&D centre
and branded companies, the Group will compromise a series of high
quality and low cost fabric products to meet the demand of those
branded companies.

The Group will also consider the possibility of adoption of
environmental protection technology to recycle the waste materials
during the production process, but the Group is still investigating
the feasibility on the technical and cost effectiveness. If the adoption
becomes feasible, the Group can save the wastage during the
production process to slim down the production cost and may even
be eligible to apply for certain government subsidy.

With the above strategies, we hope not only to maintain the strategic
position but to enhance the quality of products, boost our revenue
and improve the profitability and customer loyalty.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Our revenue in 2014 was approximately RMB810.8 million, which was
at a similar level as that of 2013. Our revenue was principally driven
by the following factors:

(i) revenue of our fabrics products increased from approximately
RMB680.4 million in 2013 to approximately RMB722.8
million. Such increase in the revenue of our fabric products
was primarily due to (1) our ability to meet customers’
requirements and specifications, market preference and
fashion trend so as to offer a wide range of fabric products to
our customers. Our sales volume of fabric products increased
from approximately 34,598.96 km in 2013 to approximately
37,894.1 km in 2014; (2) similar level in the average selling
price ranged from approximately RMB19.7 per meter in 2013
to approximately RMB19.1 per meter in 2014; and

(ii) revenue of yarn products decreased from approximately
RMB111.2 million in 2013 to approximately RMB87.9 million
in 2014. Such decrease in the revenue of our yarn products
was primarily due to lower demand for the yarn products
in 2014 while the average selling price decreased from
approximately RMB19,725 per tonne in 2013 to approximately
RMB 19,064 per tonne in 2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EIE B3R 94T

The increase in cost of sales by 2.8% from approximately RMB643.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2013 to approximately
RMB661.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2014 was
mainly due to (i) the increase in the use of raw materials as a result
of the expansion of our fabric business; and (ii) the increase in
the subcontracting dyeing charges as a result of our customers’
requirement for such fabrics products.

The gross profit was approximately RMB149.3 million in 2014, which
was similar to that of 2013.

The gross profit margin maintained similar level ranged from 18.7%
for the year ended 31 December 2013 to 18.4% for the year ended
31 December 2014.

The increase in selling and distribution expenses by 92.5% from
approximately RMB2.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2013
to approximately RMB4.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2014 was mainly due to higher expenses of approximately RMB1.5
million on transportation of grey yarns for dyeing from our Hubei
Production Facilities.

The increase in general and administrative expenses by 17.5% from
approximately RMB31.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2013
to approximately RMB37.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2014 was mainly due to (i) increase in salaries and fringe benefits
by approximately RMB1.4 million for increased number of staff
during the vyear, (i) increase in depreciation of office equipment and
amortization of intangible assets by approximately RMB0.9 million for
operation of Hubei Production Facilities since June 2013, and (iii) the
share-based payment expenses of approximately RMB1.5 million for
the fair value adjustment of the share option granted at the balance
sheet date.

The increase in finance costs by 38.8% from approximately RMB17.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2013 to approximately
RMB23.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2014 was mainly
due to increase in the average balance of borrowings in order to meet
our needs of working capital as a result of our business expansion as
well as to finance the construction of the second phase of our Hubei
Production Facilities.

Corporate bonds issued by the Company since the third quarter of
2014 amounted to approximately RMB27.7 million of which the
interest cost had already been accrued.
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The Company adopted a share option scheme on 27 March 2014.

On 12 December 2014, the Company granted 50,000,000 share
options to certain of its Directors, shareholders, customers and
suppliers at an exercise price of HK$0.978 per share. The share option
expense charged to the statement of profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2014 was approximately RMB5.1 million. This amount
was charged to decrease in revenue of approximately RMB1.5 million,
an increase in cost of sales of approximately RMB2.1 million and
general and administrative expenses of approximately RMB1.5 million,
respectively.

The Group's listing expenses amounted to RMB5.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2014, which decreased by 39.4% as compared
to RMB9.4 million for the year 2013.

These fees primarily consisted of service charges the Group paid to
the professional parties engaged in connection with the preparation
for the listing. On 25 April 2014, the Company completed the initial
public offering and the shares of the Company were listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

The Group'’s leasehold land, property, plant and equipment situated
at Shishi and Hubei Production Facilities are land and various buildings
in the manufacturing plants. The Group has 100% interest in 2
parcels of land located at Da Sheng Guan Shan Industrial Zone,
Huangmei County, Huanggang City, Hubei Province, the PRC
with gross floor area of approximately 99,903 square meters. The
development of second phase construction of our Hubei Production
Facilities is in progress and the addition of construction-in-progress
was approximately RMB35.7 million as at 31 December 2014.

In addition, the Group currently occupies 3 parcels of land with
buildings with gross floor area of approximately 60,764.33 square
meters located at Shishi, Quanzhou City, Fujian Province, the PRC and
a parcel of land with buildings with gross floor area of approximately
52,365.2 square meters located at Da Sheng Guan Shan Industrial
Zone, Huangmei County, Huanggang City Hubei Province, the PRC
for production, storage, staff quarter and ancillary purposes.
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It represented an investment in a local financial institution located
at Huangmei County, Huanggang City, Hubei Province, the PRC of
approximately RMB4.5 million. The investment amount represented
less than 1% of the total asset value of the consolidated balance
sheet as at 30 June 2014 and of the average market capitalisation of
the last five trading days before the date of investment of 22 August
2014. The investment target was a new business which did not yet
generate any revenue and profits before the acquisition.

Decrease in inventories by 10.1% from approximately RMB75.6
million as at 31 December 2013 to approximately RMB68.0 million as
at 31 December 2014 was mainly due to decrease of raw materials by
approximately RMB18.5 million as a result of the effective inventory
management.

Increase in trade and other receivables and prepayments by 43.4%
from approximately RMB167.2 million as at 31 December 2013 to
approximately RMB239.7 million as at 31 December 2014 was mainly
due to increase in trade receivables by RMB49.9 million over the
last year for offering the 45 days average credit period to retain the
regular customers and the increase of prepayment for purchase of
raw materials by approximately RMB39.4 million.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, net cash inflow from
operating activities was approximately RMB7.6 million. Compared
with the net cash inflow in the last year of approximately RMB60.4
million, the decrease in net cash inflow from the operating activities
of approximately RMB52.8 million was mainly due to the increase of
trade receivables and prepayments for raw materials of approximately
RMB74.6 million.

Net cash outflow from the investing activities in 2014 was
approximately RMB52.5 million. Decrease of net cash outflow from
the investing activities of approximately RMB87.3 million as compared
with the last year was mainly due to decrease in purchase of property,
plant and equipment of approximately RMB89.6 million for the
construction of the first phase of Hubei Production Facilities in 2013.

The net cash inflow from the financing activities in the year 2014
was approximately RMB132 million whereas the net cash outflow in
the year 2013 was approximately RMB120 million. Increase in the
net cash inflow from financing activities of approximately RMB12
million was mainly due to the net proceeds of initial public offering
of approximately RMB128.7 million offset by the decrease of the
proceeds from borrowings of approximately RMB65.5 million and the
increase in the restricted bank deposits of approximately RMB42.4
million.
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At ESREERHUN PSS &M m=E
BT EREBRENARKASAET - K&
SRE—T—NFA=THEHEEBRBRNE
ERBER-_Z-—NEN\AZ+ZBREBBFIREZ
RER S B FEHEHER1% - KEBZERNE
BB A 1 R EE A TR M et e A R 5 75

FER-_Z—=+-_A=+—HHARETS 6/
B BP0 %E=_E—NF+=-A=+—H%
ARG OEEL  TERFEEEAN  BUFR
MERDHIARBISSAEETT

B REMEBWREFTUARENZFA-E—=F+=
A=+—HBHARK167 288 TIZMA34%E—
T—NFE+-A=+—HHARE2397EE T
FTEHREFRIRBLSKIHEEHRUREER
ML B ZRUERFUEIMAREL 9FE T RIRER
MR ZFBNFIE MO AREAGET »

HE-Z-—WNE+-_A=1+—RBILFE L%
SEEATSRESFRANARE7 6BET - AL E
FREFRANARKC0ABETT  HEEEEAT
BREFRARPOARES28EETL  TBRE
BE BRI R R R TR FUE KA R
74.6B87T °

—E-MEREEBMFRSFREHARES2.5
BET - HEEFRIRERDRSFREOA
R¥8738&T  T2RAR/RIBENE - K=
RENARKS.CABTIER T —=FF—H
WAL E R -

TE-UFRBRETHABESEFRALDARE
1NEEL M-E—=ZFARESFREHARE
1208 87T ° EMEREETHAEFERSFRALA
REDNEET  TERRABARRARABEMSK
EFHEOARE128 788 TEERLERTES
R ARG5S 58 &L RIEIMZRHRITFRL
AR AGETT -
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Our primary uses of cash are to satisfy our working capital needs
and our capital expenditure needs. Since our establishment, our
working capital needs and capital expenditure requirements have
been principally financed through a combination of shareholders’
equity, cash generated from operations, bank borrowing and other
borrowings.

The Group adopts a prudent cash and financial management policy.
In order to achieve better cost control and minimize the cost of funds,
the Group’s treasury activities and centralised and cash and cash
equivalents are generally deposited with financial institutions such as
banks denominated mostly in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.

The following table sets forth our current assets, current liabilities,
current ratio, quick ratio, gearing ratio and debt to equity ratio as
at 31 December 2014 with comparative figures as at 31 December

BAMREEEANREHMANEEESTERE
AHRAXHFRE - BRFINZAR - HPINEEEST
ENEARAXFR BT RE B R ERS - L
"o RITERLEMERERESST

AEBRRFBENRS MV BERHR - REFH
EHIRAREBAEFREESKA  AEESEHER
HBERE B ReFEYRERNERTE
TRIME - BREDUAARERETAHE -

TREFIN—_F-—MF+-A=1+—BHMANRD
BE RPEE  RIBLE - FBHHLEX - EREE
R M EHRALLE - BRI - T—=FHLBHF :

2013:

2013
—ET—=%F
RMB’000
ARETIT
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 75,647
Trade and other receivables and prepayments 2 5 & H {th e g 5008 N T X 167,228
Cash and bank balances He RIRTTEARE 47,922
Restricted bank deposits ZRHISRITIF SR 32,799
Total current assets REEELE 323,596
Current liabilities REBEE
Borrowings (R 182,727
Trade and other payables B 5 M EAMERFRIE 226,877
Current income tax liabilities BIEAF SR B E 18,432
Total current liabilities HRBaERE 428,036
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE (ARE)FE (104,440)
Current ratio FE =R 75.6%
Quick ratio RE L= 57.9%
Gearing ratio EmEEL=E 46.1%
Debt to equity ratio BEFR A = 103.5%
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Particulars of borrowings of the Company of approximately RMB27.7
million (2013: Nil) and the Group of approximately RMB327.6 million
(2013: RMB268.1 million) as at 31 December 2014 are set out in note
15 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s land use rights and buildings,
machinery and equipment with an aggregate net book value of
approximately RMB305.5 million were pledged to secure banking
facilities for purposes of working capital and purchases of fixed assets
for the Group (as at 31 December 2013: approximately RMB159.2
million).

On 25 April 2014, the Company completed the initial public offering
and the shares of the Company were duly listed on the Main Board of
the SEHK. An aggregate amount of approximately RMB128.7 million
has been raised as the initial public offering proceeds.

Upon completion of the initial public offering, the total number of
issued shares of the Company has increased to 1,010,000,000.

The Group mainly operates in the mainland China with most of
the revenue and expenditure transactions denominated and settled
in RMB, where its foreign exchange risk is limited. The Group's
exposure to foreign exchange risk is mainly on its sales and purchase
transactions (i.e., export or import of products) denominated in USD
and HKD, and amounts due from/to related parties denominated in
USD. The Group does not hedge its foreign exchange risk during the
year but will monitor closely the Group’s foreign exchange exposure
and manage its foreign exchange risks by performing regular reviews.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

There were no material acquisitions or disposals during the year
ended 31 December 2014.
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USE OF PROCEEDS AND EXPANSION PLAN

From 25 April 2014 (the “Listing Date”) to the date of this report,
the Group has been following the pattern of application of the net
proceeds as described in the prospectus of the Company dated 10
April 2014. In addition, the Group does not intend to change its
expansion plan as described in the prospectus with the reschedule of
the second phase of Hubei Production Facilities, as at 31 December
2014, the unutilised net proceeds are approximately HKD59.4
million, equivalent to approximately RMB47.5 million of which the
whole amount of the unutilised net proceeds was deposited in bank
accounts in the PRC. Details of the reschedule of the construction of
the second phase of Hubei Production Facilities were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 19 September 2014.

SIGNIFICANT EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 30 December 2014, the Company announced voluntarily on the
entering into the placing agreement in relation to the placing of 7%
three year term corporate bonds in an aggregate principal amount
of HKD200 million for the working capital purpose. Pursuant to
the placing agreement, on 22 January 2015, the Company issued
bonds in the principal amount of HKD84.0 million. The bonds were
unsecured, interest bearing at a rate of 7% per annum, payable semi-
annually and repayable by year 2018.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code of corporate
governance. The manner in which the principles and code provisions
in the CG Code are applied and implemented since 25 April 2014 (the
“Listing Date”) and up to the date of this annual report (the “Period”)
is explained in this Corporate Governance Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The Company acknowledges
the important role of its Board in providing effective leadership and
direction to its business, and ensuring transparency and accountability
of its operations.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the
applicable code provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout the
Period save for code provision A.1.8.

Code provision A.1.8 of the CG Code stipulates that the Company
should arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its Directors. Currently, the Company does not consider
necessary to have insurance cover for legal action against its Directors
and will monitor any changes to the situation and make necessary
action. The Board believes with the current internal control system
and the close supervision of the management, the Directors’ risk
of being sued or getting involved in litigation in their capacity as
Directors is relatively low.

The Company will, from time to time, review and enhance its
corporate governance practices to ensure that these continue to meet
the requirements of the CG Code.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors and employees who are likely
to possess inside information of the Company (the “Securities Dealing
Code”). The Company had made specific enquiry of all Directors
whether they have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the Period and all Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the Model Code and the Securities Dealing Code
throughout the Period.

No incident of non-compliance of the Securities Dealing Code by the
employees was noted by the Company during the Period.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the businesses, strategic decisions and performance of
the Group. The Board has delegated to the executive Directors and
senior management the authority and responsibility for the day-to-
day management and operation of the Group. In addition, the Board
has established Board committees and has delegated to these Board
committees various responsibilities as set out in their respective terms
of reference.

All Directors carry out duties in good faith, in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests of the Company
and its shareholders at all times.

The Board currently comprises six members, consisting of three
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.

The Company has throughout the Period met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors with at least one independent non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, and
accounting or related financial management expertise. At all times
during the Period, the independent non-executive Directors represent
at least one-third of the Board.
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The Board comprises the following Directors:

Mr. LIN Qingxiong (Chairman)
Mr. QIU Zhigiang
Mr. DENG Qinghui

Mr. YU Yubin
Mr. MA Chonggqi
Mr. CHAN Sui Wa

A description of the biographies of the Directors is set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report.

The list of Directors is also disclosed in all corporate communications
issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to
time. The independent non-executive Directors are expressly identified
in all corporate communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

All Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve
on the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship with each other.
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The chairman of the Company, Mr. Lin Qingxiong, leads the Board
in the determination of the strategy of the Group and in the
achievement of its objectives. He is responsible for organizing the
business of the Board, ensuring its effectiveness and setting agenda
but not involved in the day-to-day business of the Group.

The Company at present does not have a Chief Executive Officer.
The duties and responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer of daily
operation of the Group are carried out by the executive Directors
and they are accountable to the Board for financial and operational
performance of the Group.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing from
27 March 2014, which may be terminated by not less than three
months’ notice. Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
been appointed by the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from 27 March 2014, and such appointment may be
terminated by not less than one month'’s written notice.

The following Directors will retire by rotation and offer themselves for
re-election in the forthcoming AGM to be held 22 May 2015:

LIN Qingxiong
QIU Zhigiang

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of directors are laid down in the Company’s articles of association.
Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
any new Director appointed to fill a causal vacancy shall hold office
until the first general meeting of the Company after his appointment
and be eligible for re-election thereat and any Director appointed
as an addition to the Board shall hold office until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company after his appointment and
be eligible for re-election thereat. Where vacancies arise at the Board,
candidates will be proposed and put forward to the Board by the
Nomination Committee.
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Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive induction
on the first occasion of his appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
full awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

According to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company should
be responsible for arranging and funding suitable training, as well as
placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of
the Directors.

The Executive directors participated in two in-house professional
development courses conducted by Mr. Siu Kai Chun, our Company
Secretary during the Period. The Directors confirm that they will
comply with the relevant code provision in the coming year.

Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings
Directors’ resolutions were passed by way of written resolutions or by
physical meetings during the Review Period.

The Board is expected to meet regularly and at least two times a
year. The Directors have full access to information on the Group
and independent professional advice at all times whenever deemed
necessary by the Directors.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as
the operation and financial performance of the Group, and to review
and approve the Group’s annual and interim results. During the year,
two Board meetings were held and attendance of each Director at the
Board meetings is set out as follows:
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Number of Board
meetings attended/held

Board member E=gmE M RTEEEERRE
Executive Directors: HITES :

Mr. Lin Qingxiong (Chairman) MWBHERE(ERE) 2/2
Mr. Qiu Zhigiang [5G e 2/2
Mr. Deng Qinghui B S 2/2
Independent non-executive Directors: BIUEHITESE :

Mr. Chan Sui Wa FRImEE S 2/2
Mr. Yu Yubin I te 212
Mr. Ma Chonggi BERMEE 2/2
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The Company has to comply with the CG Code provisions with regard
to the conduct of meetings, have annual meeting schedules and draft
agenda of each meeting made available to directors in advance and
serve notice of regular Board meetings to all directors at least 14
days before the meeting. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notice is required to be given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information have to be sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting to keep Directors apprised of
the latest developments and financial position of the Company and
to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each
Director also have separate and independent access to the senior
management where necessary.

The Company's articles of association contain provisions requiring
Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum
at meetings for approving transactions in which such directors or any
of their associates have a material interest.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company established a nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”), a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) on
27 March 2014 with written terms of reference in compliance with
the CG Code. The Company also established a regulatory compliance
committee (the “Regulatory Compliance Committee”) on 26 February
2014.

The Nomination Committee comprises three members who are all the
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yu Yubin, Mr. Chan
Sui Wa and Mr. Ma Chonggi. Mr. Yu Yubin is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board structure and composition, developing and formulating
relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of directors, and assessing the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors based on criteria such as
integrity, accomplishment, experience, professional and educational
background and time commitments.
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The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year. Two
committee meetings were held in 2014 to review the structure and
composition of the Board and the re-election of the retiring Directors
and attendance of each member is set out as follows:

REZEGEFAGHEL R - R_T—NFZ
RITMAREZ BB NIRRT ESSHEERAMRA
MEERTES  SREMNHFERHIIMT

Number of committee
meetings attended/held

Committee member EEERE HiE EBITEESSERY
Mr. Chan Sui Wa PR B 2 e A 2/2
Mr. Yu Yubin BERXE S A 2/2
Mr. Ma Chonggi BERREE 2/2

The Nomination Committee has adopted a written nomination
procedure (the “Nomination Procedure”) specifying the process
and criteria for the selection and recommendation of candidates
for directorship of the Company. The Nomination Committee shall,
based on those criteria as set out in the Nomination Procedure (such
as appropriate experience, personal skills and time commitment etc.),
identify and recommend the proposed candidate to the Board for
approval of an appointment.

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction package
containing all key legal and Listing Rules’ requirements as well as
guidelines on the responsibilities and obligations to be observed by a
Director. The package will also include the latest published financial
reports of the Company and the documentation for the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Board. The senior management
will subsequently conduct such briefing as is necessary to give the
new Directors more detailed information on the Group’s businesses
and activities.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members who are all
the independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ma Chongqji,
Mr. Chan Sui Wa and Mr. Yu Yubin. Mr. Ma Chonggqi is the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of the executive
Directors and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee
is also responsible for establishing transparent procedures for
developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no
Director or any of his associates will participate in deciding his own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to
the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions.
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The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year. During
the year, two committee meetings were held in 2014 to review and
discuss the existing policy and structure for the remuneration of
Directors, the remuneration packages of both the executive and non-
executive Directors and attendance of each member is set out as
follows:

FEZEgeFAGEES R RT—NFE
ﬁifTﬁﬁ//\;E%EuﬁLAmnT&nTEﬁEETTEZﬁ AR
WITEENFEMTEENFIH IR - SKENLE
RFIIGE -

Number of committee
meetings attended/held

Committee member EEENE HiE EBITEESSERY
Mr. Chan Sui Wa BRImEE S A4 2/2
Mr. Yu Yubin B S A 2/2
Mr. Ma Chonggi BEREREE 2/2

The Remuneration Committee confirms that the remuneration
payable to Directors will depend on their respective contractual terms
under their employment or service contracts as approved by the Board
on the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee.

In order to attract, retain and motivate the senior executives and
key employees of the Group, including the executive Directors,
the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) in 27 March 2014 for a term of one year. Details of the
share option scheme are set out in the Directors’ Report on pages 37
to 39 and note 13(b) to the financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
of the senior management by band for the year ended 31 December
2014 is set out below:

FHZE R BNEZZHFHSETFHER
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KA R MIFE13(0) ©

REBELEERTARTARXB1.5  SREEE
ABRBE_Z-MF+-_A=t—RHLFEZH
MEEEHINMT

Number of individuals

In the band of EE AE
Nil to HKD 1,000,000 L% 1,000,000/ 7T 3
The Audit Committee comprises three members who are the BEZZES@EE=FKE @ AIEREELL - a8

independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Sui Wa, Mr.
Yu Yubin and Mr. Ma Chonggi. Mr. Chan Sui Wa is the chairman of
the Audit Committee.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

J To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the staff responsible for
the accounting and financial reporting function, internal auditor
or external auditors before submission to the Board.
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o To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors.

o To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

The Audit Committee oversees the internal control system of the
Group, reports to the Board on any material issues, and makes
recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year. Two committee
meetings were held in 2014 and the attendance of each member is
set out as follows:

o HESERHEMETZINE HREREE
fEEFRIE - IRAT N BNV RE (R - IS
BREMNEE BEEMRREAEESEH
et

o EMARTNBBRBES  WBER M
RERERFGARABRFHEE RS
BRI -

BERRBQEEASEANERRG  MESFSWH
EEMEAFRTAESTSRDE

DR © R=F—TEE
P BB E RPN

Number of committee
meetings attended/held

Committee member EEERE HiE EBITEESSENY
Mr. Chan Sui Wa PR B 2 S A 2/2
Mr. Yu Yubin BIEE S A 2/2
Mr. Ma Chonggi BEREREE 2/2

During the meetings held in 2014 and the first quarter of 2015, the
Audit Committee had performed the work as summarised below:

(i)  reviewed and approved the audit scope and fees proposed by
the external auditor regarding the final audit of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2014 (the “2014 Final Audit”);

(i)  reviewed the external auditor’s report of findings in relation to
the 2014 Final Audit for the year ended 31 December 2014;

(i)  reviewed the management accounts of the Group and the
summary of findings by the external auditor in relation to a
review of the Group’s 2014 interim financial statements;

(iv)  reviewed the financial report for the six months ended 30 June
2014;

(v) reviewed the effectiveness of internal control system of the

Group including financial, operational and compliance control
and risk management functions of the Group; and

24 WANG TAI HOLDINGS LIMITED 2014 Annual Report

RE—NEN—T—RAFEFFTERTZ2SH%
ERLEEECEEIT TERmT

)RR RAEINE AR AREEE
E-NFT_A=1T—HLEFEZFREZ
(=2 FEFRER D IZBRENER

—~

(i) wWIAIEEZBEMEBEE_T-—NF+_A
=+t BLEFEZ-_T-HFFREFZER
s

(i) tAAEBEEIRRB RRE SN A
’il_f PO R B S R R 1T —TRE R
SHOBRHE

(ivy ®meEE_ZFT—NFA=+HBILEANEARZ
B

Vv BHAEERBEEHE - AEAEEN
B - BRI R AR EIEY sk
Wk 5 R

>>§|_



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT fh¥E AR &

(vi) reviewed the internal control report conducted on the early
2015 by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Risk Advisory Services
Limited, an independent external consultant on all non-
compliance matters mentioned in the prospectus dated 10 April
2014 including monitor of bill financing activities.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of
the external auditors.

The Regulatory Compliance Committee comprises of three members,
namely Mr. Qiu Zhigiang, Mr. Deng Qinghui and Mr. Siu Kai Chun.
Mr. Qiu Zhigiang is the chairman of the Regulatory Compliance
Committee.

The primary duties of the Regulatory Compliance Committee is to
ensure that the Group’s business operations and activities are in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations, and the Regulatory
Compliance Committee directly reports to the Board.

The Regulatory Compliance Committee shall meet at least once a
year. During the year, three committee meetings were held to review
and discuss the compliance status of the existing business operations
and activities, with the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, Hong
Kong and the respective jurisdictions if applicable. Attendance of each
member is set out as follows:
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A\ —E-MFEERT_REZESEH ARG LAl
RAXRBEEREHNERER - WBTHE - &
BREREEER(MER)MERER MER - &
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Number of committee
meetings attended/held

Committee member ZEGRE HE/BITHNEEESRHA
Mr. Qiu Zhigiang (Executive director) SRR E(ITES) 3/3
Mr. Deng Qinghui (Executive director) BEIEEE(ITES) S
Mr. Siu Kai Chun (Company Secretary) BB L E(RAIME) 3/3

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Nomination Committee is also responsible to review the Board
diversity policy. The Board diversity policy ensures the Nomination
Committee nominates and appoints candidates on merit basis to
enhance the effectiveness of the Board so to maintain high standards
of corporate governance. The Company sees diversity at the Board
level as an essential element in maintaining a competitive advantage.
The Company aims to ensure that Board appointments will be made
on the basis of a range of diversity factors, including gender, age,
cultural background, educational background, industry experience
and professional experience. Selection of candidates to join the Board
will be, in part, dependent on the pool of available candidates with
the necessary skills, knowledge and experience. The ultimate decision
will be based on merit and the contribution the chosen candidate will
bring to the Board, having regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.
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DELEGATION OF MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company
including approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable laws
and regulations are followed. Each Director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the executive Directors and the senior
management. The delegated functions and responsibilities are
periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by the aforesaid
officers.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2014.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group are set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Reports in this annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal
control system to safeguard shareholder investments and Company
assets and with the support of the Audit Committee, reviewing the
effectiveness of such system on an annual basis. The Group has
developed its systems of internal control and risk management. The
internal control system of the Group is designed to facilitate effective
and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial reporting
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, to identify and
manage potential risks and to safeguard assets of the Group.

The Company has engaged HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Risk Advisory
Services Limited, an independent internal control consultant. The
annual review of the Group’s internal control system was conducted
during the Period. The annual review of the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Company including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget and also any non-compliances with the
applicable laws and regulations, including bill-financing activities were
conducted on the early 2015. The result of the annual review was
satisfactory and no exceptions were noted during the review.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the remuneration paid/
payable to the Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers,
amounted to approximately RMB1.4 million in respect of the annual
audit service and amounted to approximately RMB0.38 million in
respect of the interim results review respectively.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the independent
auditor’s independence, objectivity and effectiveness of the audit
process. It receives each year letter from the independent auditor
confirming their independence and objectivity and holds meetings
with representatives of the independent auditor to consider the scope
of its audit, approve its fees, and the scope and appropriateness of
non-audit services, if any, to be provided by it. The Audit Committee
also makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
retention of the independent auditor.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company, Mr. Siu Kai Chun, is a full-
time employee of the Group. Please refer to his biographical details as
set out on page 33 of this annual report.
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Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association of the Company,
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

Shareholders or investors can contact the Company in the following
ways to make enquiry or to provide suggestions:

Contact Person: Mr. Siu Kai Chun, company secretary
Postal Address: Unit 02, 15th Floor, Convention Plaza Office Tower, 1
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

To put forward proposals at a general meeting, the shareholders
should submit a written notice of those proposals with detailed
contact information to the company secretary at the Company's
principal place of business stated above.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company also recognises the importance of transparency
and timely disclosure of corporate information, which will enable
shareholders and investors to make the best investment decisions.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Company continues to enhance communication and relationship with
its investors. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative
and timely manner.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
would be proposed for each substantially separate issue at
shareholder meetings, including the election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each
shareholder meeting.

CHANGES TO CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
The Articles were adopted on 27 March 2014 and there is no change
in the Articles since the date of adoption of the Articles up to the date
of this report.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lin Qingxiong (#;&#) (also known as Lin Shiti (#£:%82)), aged
48, is our chairman and executive Director. Mr. Lin co- founded
Hongtai (China) with Mr. Qiu and an Independent Third Party in
2004. Mr. Lin is responsible for the overall development and strategy
of our Group and has played an important role in establishing our
Group's presence in the PRC textile and clothing industry. Mr. Lin
has over 10 years of experience in the textile and clothing industry in
the PRC. Prior to founding Hongtai (China) in 2004, Mr. Lin founded
Shishi Gang Yi Dyeing Finishing & Wearing Co., Ltd. (58T /8 & L%
3EER /A A]) which was engaged in the textile, clothing and dyeing
industry, in July 2001, where he acted as the director and vice general
manager until April 2009. Shishi Gang Yi Dyeing Finishing & Wearing
Co., Ltd. is one of our suppliers since 2006. Mr. Lin disposed of his
27% equity interest in Shishi Gang Yi Dyeing Finishing & Wearing
Co., Ltd. in May 2009 to an Independent Third Party because Mr. Lin
decided to focus on the business development of our Group. Mr. Lin
was appointed as the standing director of the first council of China
Chamber of International Commerce Shishi Chamber of Commerce (#7
HEEEealmEeEEIESES) in December 2005. In December
2011, he was appointed as the vice standing president of the third
council of Shishi Textile & Garments Commerce Chamber (‘5 %1145
MIBEEeE=EHEL). Mr. Lin was appointed the president of
the second council of Shishi Hongshan Chamber of Commerce (%
RILPE=E 52 E2) in November 2012 and the vice president of
Shishi Federation of Industry & Commerce (AT Lg% 4 & (48
=) in May 2013.

Mr. Qiu Zhiqiang (BB %), aged 46, is our executive Director
and the general manager of Hongtai (China). Mr. Qiu was one of
the co-founders of Hongtai (China) in 2004. Mr. Qiu is primarily
responsible for the daily operation of our Group and overseeing our
sales department and procurement department. Mr. Qiu has about
24 years of experience in the textile and clothing industry. From
1989 to 2003, he worked in the production, development and sales
of textile products in the Philippines, Mr. Qiu became a member of
Textile Producers Association of the Philippines, Inc. (JEfEE %7 4%[5) %
A®) in October 1996. Mr. Qiu had engaged in the development of
the textile industry and sales and development of textile products in
the Philippines. In October 1996, he was appointed as the member
of the Philippine Cotton Goods Wholesalers Association. Mr. Qiu was
appointed as the committee member of the first council of Shishi
Youth Chamber of Commerce (AfimEFEEFE—EEES) in
2011. He was primarily responsible for the sales and procurement of
textile products.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EE N SR EEE

Mr. Deng Qinghui (88 &), aged 43, is our executive Director,
the vice general manager of Hongtai (China) and the head of
our administration and human resources department. Mr. Deng
completed a computer information management course in Peking
University in July 2004. Mr. Deng joined our Group in March 2010.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Deng was the human resources
manager of Xingye Leather Technology Co., Ltd. (B3 SR
AR /A7), a company engaging in the leather industry in the PRC
and listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock code: 002674)
in 2012, from 2006 to 2007. From September 2007 to June 2009,
Mr. Deng was the human resources director of Fujian Fuma Food
Group Limited (f22@E R MEB AR A 7)) which carried out food
production business in the PRC. Mr. Deng obtained the qualification
of National Corporate Trainer (123 #Z3)IIff) in the PRC in 2007. He
was also awarded as the “Advanced Worker of the Human Resources
of the National Textile Industry” (“2B#H43E A W E R TIESETIE
&") by the China National Textile and Apparel Council (B #h %% A A
Zmisseaaty) in 2013.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu Yubin (818i3®), aged 43, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 27 March 2014. Mr. Yu graduated with
a bachelor’s degree in English from Fujian Normal University in June
1999. Mr. Yu is currently a practicing lawyer at Titan & Partners and
prior to joining Titan & Partners in July 2009. He was a teacher at the
senior section of Fujian Jinjiang Yang Zheng Secondary School (t&32
ETIEEFESAHEL) from August 1992 to June 2003. Mr. Yu then
worked in Xingye Leather Technology Co., Ltd. (B2 E RN A
R A @]) from 2003 to 2009.

Mr. Ma Chongqi (%), aged 50, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 27 March 2014. Mr. Ma
graduated from Tianjin Polytechnic University with a major in textile
engineering (474% T 12) (formerly known as Tianjin Institute of Textile
Science and Technology) in July 1987. Mr. Ma has been a professor
at Tianjin Polytechnic University since October 2010. Mr. Ma has been
teaching at Tianjin Polytechnic University since July 1987 as an assistant
lecturer from July 1988 to September 1993, a lecturer from October
1993 to September 2000 and an assistant professor from October
2000 to September 2010. Mr. Ma is currently a member of the first
expert committee of the China Wool Textile Association (B4
MITEEE —EEXZEZEE) and a standing director of the fourth
council of the China Wool Textile Association (R ERE4 41T 2 E
MEEES)
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Mr. Chan Sui Wa (BR¥ %), aged 40, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 27 March 2014. Mr. Chan
has over 16 years of experience in auditing, finance, accounting,
corporate governance and risk management. Mr. Chan graduated
with a bachelor’s degree in business administration from the Hong
Kong University of Science & Technology in November 1997 and
obtained a master’'s degree in corporate governance from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in October 2011. Mr. Chan is
currently a member of both of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators. Mr. Chan is also a fellow member of Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Chan is the currently the sole
proprietor of S. W. Chan & Co. (FRIsZEEE BN E5AT), an accounting
firm engaging in the provision of assurance, business advisory and tax
services.

Mr. Chan had prior experience working in public accounting
firms such as Deloitte Touche Tomatsu, Arthur Andersen and
PricewaterhouseCoopers in Hong Kong. He also held the position of
group financial controller for Luxking Group Holdings Limited (/7 £
EEIERAPR A 7)) and Cacola Furniture International Limited (/&
LR FABEIBR B R A B)), which are companies listed on the Singapore
Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhang Wenwang (3R X BE), aged 51, is the vice general
manager of Hongtai (China) and the head of our production
department. Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree from Tianjin
Institute of Textile Science and Technology (K3£#474% T £7) (now
known as Tianjin Polytechnic University (K2 T 3 K£)) with a
major in textile engineering (#7%% T4%) in July 1983. Prior to joining
our Group in 2011, Mr. Zhang had worked as the chief engineer of
several enterprises in the PRC. In December 1995, Mr. Zhang was
qualified as a senior engineer (= 4% TF2RM). Mr. Zhang was a member
of Shanxi Province Enterprise Technology Innovation Committee (LU 7
ARERMENERZER).
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Ms. Liu Xuemin (2|2#8), aged 54, is the chief engineer of Hongtai
(China) and the head of our research and development department.
Ms. Liu obtained a bachelor’'s degree from Tianjin Institute of
Textile Science and Technology (KE#14% T 2k7) (now known as
Tianjin Polytechnic University (2T % K£2)) with a major in textile
engineering (47%% T#2) in July 1983. Prior to joining our Group in
2011, Ms. Liu had worked in the research and product development
of several enterprises in the PRC. In December 1995, Ms. Liu was
qualified as a senior engineer (&4 T2AM). Ms. Liu was appointed
as a member of China Textile Engineering Society Cotton Textile
Professional Committee Wearing Technology Group (F B4 4% T 2 £
SIRHBEELT B 9LIEZ4) in September 2003.

Mr. Siu Kai Chun (X&) (formerly Siu Kwok Yee (BEE1)), aged
46, is the chief financial officer and company secretary of our Group.
Mr. Siu joined us in May 2013 and is primarily responsible for the
overall financial management, corporate governance, investors
relationship and financial operations of our Group. Mr. Siu has over
17 years of experience in auditing, finance and accounting. Mr. Siu
graduated from the City University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s
degree in business studies in December 1994 and completed the
executive master of business administration programme at Lingnan
(University) College, Sun Yat-sen University (7 |1 K 2 g5 55 ( K 2)
£ %), Guangzhou, China in November 2003. Mr. Siu is currently a
fellow member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Siu was a senior manager at Ernst
& Young Transactions Limited from June 2012 to May 2013. Mr.
Siu was the financial controller from June 2003 to March 2005 and
the chief financial officer from April 2005 to March 2012 at CHT
(Holdings) Ltd., a company engaging in the manufacture and sale of
adhesive tapes, respectively. Mr. Siu also worked as a senior auditor
at Ernst & Young from 2000 to 2003, a senior accountant at Debbie
Morgan Trading Limited in 1999 and a tax accountant and auditor at
PricewaterhouseCoopers from 1994 to 1998.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are pleased to present
the annual report of the Company with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014.

REORGANISATION AND LISTING

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 29 April
2013 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Company Law Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands.

Pursuant to a group reorganisation which was completed in the
end of 2013, in preparation for listing the Company’s shares on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the
Company became the holding company of the subsidiaries comprising
the Group.

The Company successfully completed the initial public offering of
260,000,000 ordinary shares at HK$0.72 per share to the investors.
The shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
25 April 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is engaged in the design, manufacturing and sales of
fabrics and yarns in the People’s Republic of China. The principal
activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are
set out in the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2014 are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

As at 31 December 2014, there was approximately RMB61.9 million
reserve of the Company available for distribution (2013: nil).

DONATIONS

The Group did not make any charitable and other donations during
the year (2013: Nil).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in
note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group has conducted a third-party valuation of the property
held in the PRC with the value of approximately RMB299.4 million as
at 28 February 2014. If the Group has adopted such valuation, the
value of the property of approximately RMB299.4 million and the
additional depreciation of approximately RMBO.5 million will have
been considered.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of and reasons for movements in the share capital of the
Company during the year under review are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last four financial years is set out on page 119 of this annual
report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights over shares of the
Company under the Company'’s articles of association (the “Articles”)
or the laws of Cayman Islands where the Company is incorporated,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders of the Company.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report are as follows:

Mr. Lin Qingxiong (Chairman)
Mr. Qiu Zhigiang
Mr. Deng Qinghui

Mr. Ma Chongging
Mr. Yu Yubin
Mr. Chan Sui Wa

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management”.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an term of three years commencing from
27 March 2014. Each of the independent non-executive Directors
has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for an
initial term of three years commencing from 27 March 2014. None
of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the management on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The Remuneration Committee considers and recommends to
the Board on the remuneration and other benefits paid by the
Company to the Directors by reference to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market rates. The
remuneration of all Directors is subject to regular monitoring by
the Remuneration Committee to ensure that the levels of their
remuneration and compensation are appropriate.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had an aggregate of 832 full-
time employees (as at 31 December 2013: 898). Employee costs
including directors’ amendments totalled RMB27.8 million for the year
of 2014 (2013: RMB25.3 million). The Group recruited and promoted
individual persons according to their strength and development
potential. The Group determined the remuneration packages of
all employees including the Directors with reference to individual
performance and current market salary scale.

The Group regularly reviews the emolument package of the existing
employees, considers increment of salaries and conducts some long-
term incentive scheme when appropriate.

Details of Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 22 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year under
review.

36 WANG TAI HOLDINGS LIMITED 2014 Annual Report

ESRBSN

EWITEFCEARRRR —EBARGAL  B=F
—mFE=A= -H:Elﬁ_uﬂ%ﬁﬁ F o BEIUIFHIT
SFEEEARAIR —BRIH B=F— EE—
ﬂ_-i—tElﬁ_qu%ﬂ*Fz%,Hﬁfi MESFERAR

HEERMBAT ETIETEJEﬂi/J’EHj@*W(/E
ERERINT - REERAIR —F R IR R

a4 e

FINBUR
AEEREEOFMBECE DR ERERERERSR -
B REEHHIET -

FHZEER2EARAREEE  AARRERA
LMK FEERAEZSHBARRRAESES
e E REMERN - FEESNMESFMEE
SEHRER - BREMESMFMEREZKFE

R-T—ME+-_"A=+—8 KEEHES32
HEBEE(WN_E—=F+=-"A=1+—H :898
%) —_E—NFNEEXAAN(BIEEZME) &5
ARME27SEETL(ZE—=F : AR¥2538E
T0) o AEERIBEARE N REBERE RS RIEFA
B8 - AEBEREBREARBERERMSEHEKEE
TAEREE (BIEES)NEHMFSE

AEBRFECRFREZHFIGE  YEE
Z BRI H S MR- LR -

B

E=MeFFIEHN IS IRARM 22 -

ESREXGHNNER

E=MERARRREEMNE QAR N EEES
FIMBEAME RRAFEFEKEEFRE AT
RESSERNENT  EERIFEREEEAR

Ny
S o
I



DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and/or short positions of
the Directors of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO") which will have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions in
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which will be required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which will be required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in the
Listing Rules, once the shares are listed, will be as follows:

Interests in the Company:

(@)  Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
in the Company

Number of shares held in
the Company

BRG] g
EEHA B EmtE FEAR ARG EE BB
Mr. Lin Qingxiong Interest of a controlled corporation 272,000,000 shares (note) 26.93%

(long position)

MBI E R EE R 272,000,0008% (K ) (47 =)

Beneficial owner 7,840,000 shares 0.78%

(long position)

BERBEA A 7,840,0000% (¥ 2)

Mr. Qiu Zhigiang Beneficial owner 135,000,000 shares 13.50%

EBsREE

Note:

s EA A

E\\

These shares are held by Merit Lead Investments Limited,
the entire issued share capital of which is owned by Mr. Lin
Qingxiong.

(long position)
135,000,0008% (47 2&)
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EEgREE

Interests in the associated corporation of the Company:

RE L G0 % B -

Number of shares

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

Name of associated Capacity/Nature held in the associated  the associated

Name of Director corporation of interest corporation corporation
IEZAEEEE

EEnA HEEE A B4 ERHE FisHEEEROBE RESYEIL
Mr. Lin Qingxiong Merit Lead Investments ~ Beneficial owner One share of US$1.00 100%

MBS L

Save as disclosed above,

BAMEREBRAR

Limited B
BEnfEEA

as at 31 December 2014, none of the

directors of the Company had any interests or short positions in
any shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of its

associated corporations.

As at 31 December 2014
following persons (not b
an interest or short posit

, so far as the Directors are aware, the
eing a Director of the Company) had
ion in the shares or underlying shares

which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV

of the SFO, or who will, d
or more of the Company’

Name of shareholder

irectly or indirectly, be interested in 5%
s issued share capital:

Capacity/Nature of interest

(long position)
—i%1.00E (45 E)
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Number of shares

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

in the Company

LR A FRE
REEH 513 BHME BABE BOESL
Merit Lead Investments Beneficial owner 272,000,000 shares 26.93%
Limited (note 1) (long position)
EARERR AR EnEEA 272,000,0008% (4¥ &)
(MI=ET)
Mr. Cai Jinxu Beneficial owner 109,500,000 shares 10.84%
(long position)
ESMBEE EnEEA 109,500,0008% (4F &)
Hong Kong Investments Beneficial owner 56,250,000 shares 5.56%
Group Limited (note 2) (long position)
BEEREEBBRAR EmBEEA 56,250,0000% (41 &)
(Mg=E2)
Mr. Cheung Chi Mang Interest of a controlled corporation 56,250,000 shares 5.56%

RERTE
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest Number of shares in the Company
X BRE
REEM 54 EntE KRHEE BYBEIH
Qilu International Wealth  Person having security interest in 216,340,000 shares 21.42%
Management Limited shares (long position)
(note 3)
BEERH=EE AEFFERAAD 2 AT 216,340,000/
BRARI(ME3) (#F2)
Shangdong Iron & Steel Person having security interest in 216,340,000 shares 21.42%

Group Co. Ltd. (note 3) shares

RS AA R A A BEMMERRD 2 AL
(Pf3E3)
Notes:
1. Merit Lead Investments Limited is a company incorporated in the

British Virgin Islands, the entire issued share capital of which is
owned by Mr. Lin Qingxiong.

2. Hong Kong Investments Group Limited is a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands, the entire issued share capital of
which is owned by Mr. Cheung Chi Mang. Accordingly, Mr.
Cheung Chi Mang is deemed to be interested in the shares held
by Hong Kong Investments Group Limited.

3. Merit Lead Investments Limited (“Merit Lead”) entered into the
Share Charge of 216,340,000 shares of the Company which
represents approximately 21.42% of the issued share capital
of the Company with Qilu International Wealth Management
Limited being a subsidiary of Shangdong Iron & Steel Group Co.
Ltd. (the “Chargee”) on 21 November 2014, pursuant to which
Merit Lead agreed to, among others, charge by way of first legal
fixed charge to the Chargee all the right, title and interest and
benefit, present and future, of Merit Lead in and to the Charged
Shares as security for a loan advanced by the Chargee to Mr.
Lin Qingxiong. Please refer to the announcement dated 26
November 2014 for the details.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, the directors
of the Company are not aware of any other persons (other than
the directors of the Company whose interests are set out in
the section “Directors’ interests in the shares of the Company”
above) who held any interests or short positions in the shares,
or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the below section of “Share option scheme”,
at no time during the year was the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

(long position)
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted the share option scheme on
27 March 2014, and such scheme has become effective on the
Listing Date (the “Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the Share
Option Scheme is to recognize and acknowledge the contribution
of the eligible participants made to the Group. The Board may, at
its discretion, grant options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme
to Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors),
the Company’s subsidiaries, employees of the Group and other
persons the Board considers have contributed or will contribute to
the Group. The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company (i.e.
100,000,000 shares), unless otherwise approved by the shareholders
of the Company in general meeting and/or other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules. The subscription price of a share
in respect of a particular option shall be not less than the highest of
(a) the official closing price of the Shares on the daily quotation sheet
of the Stock Exchange; (b) the average official closing price of the
shares on the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c)
the nominal value of a share. The Share Option Scheme shall remain
effective within a period of 10 years from that date.

During the year 2014, the Company granted 50,000,000 share
options for the subscription of 50,000,000 shares of the Company
to certain directors and substantial shareholders, suppliers and
customers of the Group on 12 December 2014 (“Date of Grant”),
representing 5% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue
as at the date of this annual report. The maximum number of shares
issued and to be issued in respect of which options may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme to each Eligible Participants in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the
shares in issue at the date of grant, unless with the prior approval
from the Company’s shareholders and with such participants and his
associates abstaining from voting. Options granted to any Director
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their respective
associates, shall be subject to the prior approval of the independent
non-executive Directors. Where any option granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive Director, or any of their
respective associates, would result in the shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options already granted and to be granted to such
person in the 12 month period, (i) representing in aggregate over 0.1%
of the shares in issue and the date of such grant; and (ii) having an
aggregate value, based on the closing price of the shares, in excess of
HKD5 million, such grant of options shall be subject to prior approval
of the Company’s shareholders in general meeting by way of poll.

The exercise price of the options granted is HK$0.978 and the exercise
period is for one year.

An offer of a grant of an option under the Share Option Scheme
shall remain open for acceptance for 30 days from the date of grant.
Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HKD1 (or an
equivalent amount in RMB) to the Company by way of consideration
for the grant. Options may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme at any time from the date of grant until
the expiry of 1 year from such date. The subscription price shall be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion, and in any event
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shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the SEHK on the date of
grant, (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets of the SEHK for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant, and (iii) the nominal value of a share. An
option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the option is
deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry of 1 year
from that date. The period during which an option may be exercised
will be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion, save that no
option may be exercised more than 1 year after it has been granted.
No option may be granted more than 1 year after the date of
approval of the Share Option Scheme. Subject to earlier termination
by the Company in general meeting or by the Board, the Share
Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 1 year from
the date of adoption.

The summary below sets out the details of movement of options
granted for the year ended 31 December 2014 pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme:
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Number of share option
BREHE
Closing
price of the Balance Cancelled/ Balance
shares on as at Granted Exercised lapsed as at
Exercise the date 1 January during during during 31 December
Name Date of grant price of grant 2014 the year the year the year 2014
R-2-WF R=B-DF
R 2 I B B AR
#e Rt e ROUDE e FERE ERfE k% e
HKS HK$
BT BT
Mr. Lin Qingxiong 12 December 2014 0.978 0.96 - 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000
WEERE “Z-MET-AtZH
Mr. Qiu Zhigiang 12 December 2014 0.978 0.96 - 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000
BE#TAE “Z-MET-AtZH
Mr. Cai Jinxu 12 December 2014 0978 0.96 - 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000
LML “Z-MET-AtZA
Mr. Zhang Bin 12 December 2014 0.978 0.96 - 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
RBLE “Z-MET-AtZH
Ms. Wu Bingying 12 December 2014 0.978 0.96 - 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000
RKBRL “Z-MET-AtZH
Mr. Cai Yujun 12 December 2014 0978 0.96 - 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
ZEERA “Z-MET-AtZH
Mr. Ke Mingcai 12 December 2014 0.978 0.96 - 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
RERA “Z-MET-AtZH
Total 50,000,000 50,000,000
a5t
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The total fair value, which was determined by an independent
qualified appraiser using the Binomial Model, of the options granted
as the granted date is approximately HKD6.4 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB5.1 million).

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of
the share options are based on the Company’s best estimate. The
value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions. The inputs into the model are as follows:

REHBHAR T 2BRE A ERE (BB
BERMGEMER ZEARAEE)NR648EE
THEERWARES1BET) °

A EBREA T EMBEREBRRIIENA AT
REMAE - BREEERES TEIERRNTRE
Mt - RAPTRANBABIRNOT

Granted on
12 December 2014
R-ZE—NE+=-A+=H

PR

HK$0.978

Average share price FHERRE 0.978% 7T
HK$0.978

Exercise price TEE 0.978% 7T
Expected life of options T8 HA R A e £F B 1 year 147
Expected volatility LN 35.56%
Expected dividend yield TEEAAR B Nil &
Risk free rate # [ B == 0.13%

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the date of grant is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity.

For the share options granted by the Company, when they are
exercised, the amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share options reserve will
continue to be held in share options reserve. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in other reserve will
continue to be held in other reserve.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, the aggregate sales attributable to the
Group's largest and five largest customers were 6.2% and 24.1%
of the Group’s total sales respectively (2013: 4.8% and 21.6%).
The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest and
five largest suppliers were 7.5% and 25.4% of the Group’s total
purchases respectively during the year under review (2013: 9.6% and
37.1%).

During the year, none of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholders (who to the knowledge of the Directors owned more
than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company) had any interest
in any of the five largest customers or suppliers of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Company were entered into or subsisted during the year under
review.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, from the Listing Date and
up to the date of this report, the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float of at least 25% of the Company’s issued share capital as
required under the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil). As there is
no interim dividend payable during the year, there will be no dividend
distribution for the whole year at 2014.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Since the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2014, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s listed securities.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

Each of the Directors has confirmed that he is neither engaged, nor
interested, in any business which, directly or indirectly, competes or
may compete with the Group’s business.

INTERESTS IN COMPETING
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS BY THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Each of Merit Lead Investments Limited, Mr. Lin Qingxiong, Mr. Qiu
Zhigiang and Mr. Cai Jinxu, being controlling shareholders of the
Company, has entered into a deed of non-competition on 27 March
2014 (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) so as to better safeguard the
Group from any potential competition and so as to better safeguard
the Group from any potential competition and to formalise the
principles for the management of potential conflicts between them
and to enhance its corporate governance in connection with the
listing of the shares on the Stock Exchange.

The independent non-executive Directors were not required to review
any matter in relation to compliance and enforcement of the Deed of
Non-Competition during the Period.

The Company has received written confirmation from Mr. Lin
Qingxiong, Mr. Qiu Zhigiang and Mr. Cai Jinxu, being controlling
shareholders of the Company on 30 March 2015 that they have
complied with the terms of the deed of non-competition and consent
to the respective terms and conditions.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 22 Jan 2015, the Company issued three-years bonds with principal
amount of HKD84,000,000. The bonds are unsecured, interest
bearing at a rate of 7% per annum and payable semiannually.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution to reappoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the independent auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Lin Qingxiong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2015

44 WANG TAI HOLDINGS LIMITED 2014 Annual Report

ERBR R 2 T o F A

R-ZE-—MOF=A"++tH  AREERBERER
REARRAR  WEHEELE - BEREERESB

REZEBRIL— M TNHFZO(THEFRN]) - B
FRERBAKE RIS KA B HR T MR e
BEZEBEEARNOEERE - LRBAD KB
PrEMANREREER -

B IFATE S HAE AR R B RRE T RATT

THEFRONEMNEE °

N

ARREE_ZT-AF=A=THKRIMWEEL
4 BBEREERESIBEEERARAHERER
AR AT NRFROTNIERLERTE
RAIGRST S AR IF BV BERR K

n\ﬂ% H T§$IE

R-ZB-—RF—A=-+=-8 xR TLALHE
84,000,000 B T =FHES - WEEHFAEK
B IRFFERT % ERFEFFFLNT -

R BUEm
B RREEMERRABRH M EHHEL - 2

BRITHERAFASKEIRE —BMENERZ
ERLBGE ST BT ©

RREES
FE

B

) —HFE=A=1H



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

.

pwec

To the shareholders of Wang Tai Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wang Tai
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 47 to 118, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2014,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2014, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 December 2014
RZFE—MF+=—A=+—H

2013
—EF—=%F
RMB’000
AREFIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Leasehold land and land use rights THE i N £+ feE A #E 6 24,690
Property, plant and equipment ME - B NERE 7 477,469
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTEIREE 17 1,380
Available-for-sale financial assets A ESHEE 8 -
503,539
Current assets REEE
Inventories 78 10 75,647
Trade and other receivables 5 REMEWRFIE R
and prepayments TERTEK 11 167,228
Cash and bank balances R4 NIRTTRAEE 12 47,922
Restricted bank deposits ZRREIRITIER 12 32,799
323,596
Total assets EEHBE 827,135
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EENEE
Equity attributable to owners of AAREE AELER
the Company
Share capital R 13 1
Other reserves Hib G 14 130,266
Retained earnings IR &7 136,651
Total equity fERYEEE 266,918
LIABILITIES a8
Non-current liabilities FRBARE
Borrowings EEN 15 85,361
Other payables E b e FIE 18 29,875
Deferred income IRIEUTA 16 16,945
132,181
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As at 31 December 2014
REF—AFF+=A=1+—H

2013
—E—=%F
RMB’000
AREFIT

Current liabilities REBEE
Borrowings EEN 15 182,727
Trade and other payables B NEMENIE 18 226,877
Current income tax liabilities BNHAFTIS R B & 18,432
428,036
Total liabilities EEH8%E 560,217
Total equity and liabilities EaRkEERE 827,135
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE(AB)R%E (104,440)
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBERS 399,099

The notes on pages 55 to 118 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 47 to 54 were approved by the
Board of Directors on 30 March 2015 and were signed on its behalf.

Lin Qinxiong

WA
Director

EZE
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 December 2014
RZFE—MF+=—A=+—H

2013
—EF—=%F
RMB’000
AREFIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries KERKB AT 9 241,413
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables E b ISR IA 1,234
Due from subsidiaries FEURHI B A 9 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRESEEY 12 -
1,234
Total assets BEAE 242,647
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EZRkEE
Equity attributable to owners of the ARATEEAEMN
Company R
Share capital (&N 13 1
Other reserves HAb A 14 241,482
Accumulated losses ZFHEE (9,462)
Total equity R 232,021
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET AR T B EEER
As at 31 December 2014
R—F—peE+ = H=+—FH

2013
—E—=%F
RMB’000
AREFIT
LIABILITIES 8fE&
Non-current liabilities FkRBERS
Borrowings BN 15 -
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAERFRIA 18 10,626
Total liabilities EEAH 10,626
Total equity and liabilities EnRkEEAHE 242,647
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE(AB)R%E (9,392)
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERRBEE 232,021

The notes on pages 55 to 118 are an integral part of these SH55EZ18AMWEA/ZEE HMBHRR LA
consolidated financial statements. DEHERER S ©

The financial statements on pages 47 to 54 were approved by the H47HES4EMPHHREACN -FT—HF=A

Board of Directors on 30 March 2015 and were signed on its behalf. STRAEEFEGHE  WEREESE -
Lin Qinxiong Qiu Zhigiang
B R
Director Director
3 EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—F—FEF —A=+—HILFE

2013
—T-=F
RMB’'000
AREFT
Revenue Wz 5 791,518
Cost of sales SHE AR 20 (643,364)
Gross profit EF 148,154
Selling and distribution costs THE M AR 20 (2,189)
General and administrative expenses —RE AT 20 (31,477)
Other income HABWA 19 5,322
Other losses — net HAbEE — F5 (688)
Operating profit meEHRR 119,122
Finance income B RS A 23 1,368
Finance costs B 23 (17,000)
Finance costs — net BERA — T8 23 (15,632)
Profit before income tax BR AT BB AR 103,490
Income tax expense FTieBiR X 24 (28,516)
Profit for the year and attributable to FREAXATHEEA
owners of the Company FEAL =R 74,974
Other comprehensive income for the year —~ FRE M2 EKA -
Total comprehensive income for FARKDTEEA
the year and attributable to HPEALET
owners of the Company 74,974
Earnings per share for profit attributable Zx 72 B # B A FE{L 3257
to owners of the company SERER
Basic earnings per share BREREF 25 RMB10.00 cents
AREE10.005
Diluted earnings per share BREERT 25 RMB10.00 cents

AR#10.009

The notes on pages 55 to 118 are an integral part of these #55B & 118E KM AZE A KM EREA N
consolidated financial statements. DRIEERKE D o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—F—F+—H=+—HIFF

Balance at R-Z2-=%5-HA—H

1 January 2013 Fe32 113,382 70,527 183,909
Comprehensive income 2HKA
Profit for the year F R F - 74,974 74,974
Transactions with owners BREBANRS
— Issue of ordinary shares — BT 13 - - 1
— Waiver of amounts due to —HEENHEEA

owners Sojec] 8,034 - 8,034

Appropriation to statutory EEREZETERE

reserves 8,850 (8,850) -
Balance at R-E-=%

31 December 2013 +TZA=t—-B#&# 130,266 136,651 266,918
Balance at R-ZE—IF

1 January 2014 —R—R#&&
Comprehensive income 2HEKA
Profit for the year F AR F
Transactions with owners BREFEANRS
—Issue of ordinary shares upon —RAE R AFRER

initial public offering BITEAEK 13
— Issue of ordinary shares to —BITERR TR

original shareholders %5 13
— Share-based compensation ~ — & {5 Ef R BN 14
Appropriation to statutory EERZEETERE

reserves
Balance at R-Z-—0EF

31 December 2014 +tZA=1+—-B#&&%

The notes on pages 55 to 118 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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<

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
soBenas

Year ended 31 December

BEt+-A=1+—RHLEE

2014 2013
—E-IOF —T—=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
g ARBTR ARETT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHAERERE
Cash generated from operations REMBNIRE 26 38,901 79,232
Income tax paid EATET1SHL (31,252) (18,810)
Net cash generated from operating activities &4 EBN TSRS F58 7,649 60,422
Cash flows from investing activities RETHFBESRE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment  BBE W - W= L& E (59,288) (148,891)
Investment in available-for-sale REHEESRERE
financial assets (4,500) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEDE  BEN
plant and equipment SRR TS RIE 26 - 52
Payments for leasehold land and FHE b N Hb(F FAAE
land use rights (DB (1,312) -
Cash received from government grants REBEIERBEE
for purchase of non-current assets i AE R A BT
Bamp 10,814 2,680
Interest received EFE 1,790 1,368
Repayments of advances to third parties F=FEEBN - 4,855
Repayments of advances to shareholders AREREE AR - 158
Net cash used in investing activities KB EHFTRR S T8 (52,496) (139,778)

FES5EE118EMMFAZES I SmMERMAA]
DRYMERER D

The notes on pages 55 to 118 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS &3t & hEa%
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—F—pEf = A=+ — A

2013
—E—=F
RMB'000
AREFT
Cash flows from financing activities RETBAERENE
Proceeds from borrowings BRFTSRIA 360,344
Repayments of borrowings BEBER (248,796)
Net (increase)/decrease in restricted SR HIERTTIER
bank deposits (3Em), A FEE 16,155
Proceeds from borrowings from shareholders A% & X FT1S F0IE 59,598
Repayments of borrowings from ERARR
shareholders & (53,706)
Net proceeds from initial public BRARBEEMSNIE
offering HER -
Payment for initial public offering expenses T &R AREER (1,234)
Interest and bank charges paid ENMERIBITFES (12,360)
Net cash generated from financing RMETEMERSE
activities mE 120,001
Net increase in cash and cash HeRRLEEY
equivalents EnFEE 40,645
Cash and cash equivalents at FNREeMIREEED
beginning of year 12 7,278
Cash and cash equivalents at FRESRAEEEY
end of the year 12 47,923

The notes on pages 55 to 118 are an integral part of these $#55BF118EMIN T AZESMHIMEHRER MR
consolidated financial statements. DRIEERKED D o
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Wang Tai Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands on 29 April 2013 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The address of the Company’s registered office is
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong is at Unit 02, 15th Floor,
Convention Plaza Office Tower, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the design, manufacturing and sales of fabrics and yarns.

The Company successfully completed its initial public offering
and its shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited since 25 April 2014 (the “Listing”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated
financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board
of Directors of the Company on 30 March 2015.

The principal business of the Group was previously carried
out by the subsidiaries in the PRC under Hongtai Group (Int'l)
Holding Limited (“Hongtai (Hong Kong)”), a Hong Kong
incorporated company owned by Mr. Lin Qingxiong (“Mr Lin"),
Mr. Qiu Zhigiang (“Mr Qiu”) and Mr. Cai Jinxu (“Mr Cai"),
collectively the controlling shareholders of the Company.

As part of a group reorganisation in preparation for the
Listing, on 10 September 2013, the controlling shareholders
transferred their respective shareholding in Hongtai (Hong
Kong) to a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company by way of
share swap and the Company became the holding company of
the companies now comprising the Group. The details of the
subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 29 below.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—F—pFEf+ A =+—HIFF
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ARAR—FRAERAR - KHBAR(R
AR RG] AKE ) E B EEE R RA
SR BB RN -

ARREMTREERAREE - ARH A
“E-NFOA T HRRERBHAERS
FARAR LW Em]) -

BREEEEN  ZETBRETIUARE
(TAR¥2Y - ZEPBBRROVN _-Z
—RFE=A=THAEAQNTIEESHETI -

AEENTEXBATHARNER (B K
MERRB(ERN(EE) ] B—AEBEM
REETHRBEIRAKE AT )ET  MAEK
(BB BARD AR BRMBLE A ([R5
1)~ EpERs S (TERSE & ) RS B4
(&L DRRHEE -

tEREB LM EEEA(EADHBN - »
“E-=FAATH  BERBREEER(E
BINREEET - HARREERAMB L
Al BB AR A R AR R IR
BAR - REXEKAEE - RRFHEL
BIFHIEEN T XX HaE29

EAERAERAT 2014456 EHE 55



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &3 B1 i $R R Mzt
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE=F— = A= — AU

GENERAL INFORMATION (ontinued)

The Reorganisation involved companies under common control.
Accordingly, the 2013 comparative financial information
included in this consolidated financial information of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2013 has been prepared using
the principles of merger accounting, as prescribed in Hong Kong
Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for Common
Control Combinations” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), and present the
combined results and cashflows of the companies of the Group
as if the group structure had been in existence throughout the
year ended 31 December 2013 or since the respective dates
of incorporation or establishment, whichever was the shorter
period.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of buildings, financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative instruments) at fair value through
profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with the applicable requirements of the
predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) for this
financial year and the comparative period.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 381 % 3R R M =T

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(@

New amendments and interpretation adopted by
the Group in 2014

The following new amendments to existing
standards and interpretation are mandatory for
the first time for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2014, and relevant to the Group.

Amendment to IAS 32 ‘Financial Instruments:
Presentation’ on assets and liabilities offsetting. It
clarifies some of the requirements for offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities on the
balance sheet.

Amendment to IAS 36 'Impairment of Assets' on
recoverable amount disclosures. It addresses the
disclosure of information about the recoverable
amount of impaired assets if that amount is based
on fair value less costs of disposal.

HK(IFRIC) 21 ‘Levies: It is an interpretation of IAS 37
‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets’. IAS 37 sets out criteria for the recognition
of a liability, one of which is the requirement for
the entity to have a present obligation as a result
of a past event (known as an obligating event). The
interpretation clarifies that the obligating event that
gives rise to a liability to pay a levy is the activity
described in the relevant legislation that triggers the
payment of the levy.

2.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—T—F+-—A=+—HILFZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 3 81 % R R B =T

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—T—F+-—A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

PO LICI E S (continued)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(continued)

(@) New amendments and interpretation adopted by

the Group in 2014 (continued)

Annual improvements 2012 include changes from
the 2010-2012 cycle of the annual improvements
project, that affect 7 standards, only the below are
effective for relevant transactions executed on or

after 1 July 2014:

° Amendment to IFRS 2 ‘Share-based Payment’

clarifies the definition of a ‘vesting condition’
and separately define ‘performance condition’
and ‘service condition’.

Amendments to IFRS 3 ‘Business
Combinations’, and on sequential
amendments to IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’,
IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets’, and IAS 39 ‘Financial
Instruments — Recognition and Measurement’
clarify that an obligation to pay contingent
consideration which meets the definition of a
financial instrument is classified as a financial
liability or as equity, on the basis of the
definitions in IAS 32 ‘Financial Instruments:
Presentation’. All non-equity contingent
consideration, both financial and non-
financial, is measured at fair value at each
reporting date, with changes in fair value
recognised in profit and loss.

The adoption of the above new amendments
and interpretation starting from 1 January
2014 did not give rise to any significant
impact on the Group's results of operations
and financial position for the year ended 31
December 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 381 % 3R R M =T

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(continued)

(b)

New standards and amendments issued but are not
yet effective for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2014 and have not been early adopted by
the Group

A number of new standards and amendments to
existing standards have been issued but are not
yet effective for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2014, and have not been early adopted by
the Group in preparing these consolidated financial
statements. The Group is yet to assess the full
impact of these new standards and amendments
and intents to adopt them no later than the
respective effective dates of these new standards
and amendments. These new standards and
amendments are set out below:

Amendment to IAS 19 regarding defined benefit
plans, effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2014.

Annual improvements 2012 that affect the
following standards: IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’,
IAS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment’, IAS 24
‘Related Party Disclosures’ and IAS 38 ‘Intangible
Assets’, effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2014.

Annual improvements 2013 that affect the following
standards: IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’, IFRS 13
‘Fair Value Measurement’ and IAS 40 'Investment
Property', effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2014.

2.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &3 B1 i $R R Mzt
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE=F— = A= — AU

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEE:HBFEHBEw)
POLICIES (continued)
Changes in accounting policies and disclosures 2B ER B ENEE ()
(continued)
(b)  New standards and amendments issued but are not b)) ER=F—mF—H—HRER

60 WANG TAI HOLDINGS LIMITED

yet effective for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2014 and have not been early adopted by

BB E AR A 16 1 K A R e # AT
BRIRIERTA - KA B 5 K A

the GfOUP (continued) —/E—%féﬁ({g)
IFRS 14 ‘Regulatory Deferral Accounts’, effective BRI SRR 145 BT

for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016.

Amendments to IFRS 11 on accounting for
acquisitions of interests in joint operations, effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016.

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 on clarification
of acceptable methods of depreciation and
amortisation, effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016.

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41 on agriculture:
bearer plants, effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 on sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture, effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 381 % 3R R M =T

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(continued)

(b)

New standards and amendments issued but are not
yet effective for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2014 and have not been early adopted by
the Group (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 on presentation of financial
statements, effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016.

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 on
investment entities, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

Amendments to IAS 27 on separate financial
statements regarding equity method, effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016.

Annual improvements 2014 that affect the following
standards: IFRS 5 ‘Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations’, IFRS 7 ‘Financial
Instruments: Disclosures’, IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’
and IAS 34 ‘Interim Financial Reporting’, effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016.

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’,
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017.

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’, effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

2.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &3 B1 i $R R Mzt
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE=F— = A= — AU

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(continued)

©

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 "Accounts
and Audit" of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation as from
the Company’s first financial year commencing on
or after 3 March 2014 (i.e. year beginning 1 January
2015) in accordance with section 358 of that
Ordinance. The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of expected impact of the changes in the
Companies Ordinance on the consolidated financial
statements in the period of initial application of Part
9 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622). So far it has concluded that the impact is
unlikely to be significant and only the presentation
and the disclosure of information in the consolidated
financial statements will be affected.

2.2.1 Consolidation

62 WANG TAI HOLDINGS LIMITED

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

2014 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 81 i $R R izt
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—T—F+-—A=+—HILFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(@

Merger accounting for common control
combination

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
combining entities in which the common
control combination occurs as if they had been
combined from the date when the combining
entities first came under the control of the
controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities are
combined using the existing book values
from the controlling parties’ perspective. No
amount is recognized in consideration for
goodwill or excess of acquirers’ interest in the
net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost
at the time of common control combination,
to the extent of the continuation of the
controlling party’'s interest.

The consolidated statement of comprehensive
income includes the results of each of the
combining entities from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the
combining entities first came under the
common control, where there is a shorter
period, regardless of the date of the common
control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated
financial statements are presented as if the
entities had been combined at the previous
balance sheet date or when they first came
under common control, whichever is shorter.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &3 B1 i $R R Mzt
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE=F— = A= — AU

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(@

(b)

64  WANG TAI HOLDINGS LIMITED

Merger accounting for common control
combination (continued)

Transaction costs, including professional
fees, registration fees, costs of furnishing
information to shareholders, costs or losses
incurred in relation to the common control
combination that is to be accounted for by
using merger accounting is recognized as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the group’s
accounting policies.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 381 % 3R R M =T

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

22.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the company on
the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the executive directors of the Company that
makes strategic decisions.

(a)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). These consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the
Company'’s functional and presentation currency.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 3 81 % R R B =T

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—T—F+-—A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b) Transactions and balances

(c)

66 WANG TAI HOLDINGS LIMITED

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the profit or loss,
except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the profit or loss within ‘finance
income or cost’. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the profit or loss within
‘other income-net'.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

() assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rates on
the dates the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognized in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 381 % 3R R M =T

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leasehold land and land use rights are carried at their
historical cost less accumulated amortisation. It is
amortised over its contractual life (from date of availability
to termination of contract) using the straight-line method
between 41 to 50 years.

Buildings comprise mainly factories and offices. Plant
and equipment classified as finance lease and all other
property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Construction-in-progress represents properties under
construction and is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. This includes cost of construction
and other direct costs. Construction-in-progress is not
depreciated until such time as the assets are completed
and are ready for operational use.

Depreciation on assets is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Buildings 20 years
— Machinery and equipment 10 years
— Office equipment, furniture and vehicles 5 years

The assets’ depreciation method, residual values and useful
lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are
recognised within ‘Other income-net’ in the profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of an impairment at each reporting date.

Costs associated with making research on developing
new products are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs that are directly attributable to the
design and testing of identifiable and unique fabrics
products controlled by the Group are recognised as
intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

- It is technically feasible to complete the fabric
product so that it will be available for use;

- Management intends to complete the fabric product
and use or sell it;

- There is an ability to use or sell the fabric product;

- It can be demonstrated how the fabric product will
generate probable future economic benefits;

- Adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the
fabric product are available; and

- The expenditure attributable to the fabric product
during its development can be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense
are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 81 i $R R izt
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—T—F+-—A=+—HILFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: loans and receivables and
available for sale. The classification depends on
the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(@)

®)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The
Group's loans and receivables comprise “trade
and other receivables” and ‘cash and bank
balances’ in the balance sheet (Notes 2.11 and
2.12).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within
12 months of the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

PO LICI E S (continued)

2.9.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financial assets
not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets
is subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in
the income statement as “gains and losses from
investment securities”.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognised in the income statement as part of
other income when the Group's right to receive
payments is established.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of
the company or the counterparty.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 381 % 3R R M =T

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss
event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the profit or loss. If a loan has
a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient,
the Group may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &3 B1 i $R R Mzt
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE=F— = A= — AU

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

FESHBERME @)

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
costs.

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less, they are classified as current assets. If
not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less. Restricted bank deposits are excluded from cash and
cash equivalents.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 381 % 3R R M =T

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less.
If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE=F— = A= — AU

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

FESHBERME @)

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 381 % 3R R M =T

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
except for deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will reverse in the
future and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be
utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &3 B1 i $R R Mzt
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE=F— = A= — AU

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEE>HHEHE 4
POLICIES (continued)
(c) Offsetting () #H#H

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income tax levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

The Group’s entities in Mainland China participate in
defined contribution retirement benefit plans organized
by relevant government authorities for its employees in
Mainland China. The contributions to these plans based
on certain percentage of the salaries of the employees
on a monthly basis, up to a maximum fixed monetary
amount, as stipulated by the relevant government
authorities. The government authorities undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations payable to all
existing and future retired employees under these plans.

The Group has no further obligation for post-employment
benefits beyond the contributions made. The Group's
contributions to these plans are charged to the
consolidated profit or loss as incurred.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount can be reliably
estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 381 % 3R R M =T

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred government grants and are credited to the profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of
the related assets.

(a) Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions
The Group operates a share option scheme under
which the entity receives services from employees
as consideration for equity instruments (options) of
the Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options
is recognised as an expense. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted:

(i) including any market performance conditions
(for example, an entity’s share price);

(i) excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over
a specified time period); and

(i) including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save or holding shares for a
specified period of time).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 3 81 % R R B =T

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE _ET—IFEF+_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in the income statement, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may
provide services in advance of the grant date and
therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for
the purposes of recognising the expense during the
period between service commencement period and
grant date.

When the options are exercised, the company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net of any
directly attributable transaction costs are credited to
share capital (and share premium).

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts returns and
value added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities, as described below.

(a)

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised
when the risk and reward of the goods has been
transferred to the customer, which is usually when
the customer has picked up the products from the
Group's warehouse or the Group has delivered
the products to the customer’s warehouse, the
collectability of the related receivables is reasonably
assumed and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 381 % 3R R M =T

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

(a)

(b)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method. When a loan and receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future
cash flow discounted at the original effective interest
rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding
the discount as interest income. Interest income on
impaired loan and receivables are recognised using
the original effective interest rate.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

Financing leases

The Group leases certain plant and equipment under
finance lease. Leases of plant and equipment where
the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance
leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement
at the lower of the fair value of the leased property
and the present value of the minimum lease
payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
borrowings. The interest element of the finance cost
is charged to the profit or loss over the lease period
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. The plant and equipment acquired under
finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the
useful life of the asset and the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 3 81 % R R B =T

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—T—F+-—A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b) Financing leases (continued)

Sale and leaseback transactions with a call option
that is set at a significant discount to the expected
fair value when it becomes exercisable and other
factors indicate that the seller needs the asset to use
on an ongoing basis (seller/lessee effectively controls
the asset) are treated as secured borrowings instead
of financing leases.

Dividend distribution to the owner is recognised as a
liability in the Group’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the owners.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash
flow and fair value interest rate risk and price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential
adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

(a) Market risk

()

80 WANG TAI HOLDINGS LIMITED

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in mainland China
with most of the revenue and expenditures
transactions denominated and settled in RMB,
where its foreign exchange risk is limited.

The Group's exposure to foreign exchange
risk is mainly on its sales and purchase
transactions (i.e., export or import of products)
denominated in United State dollars (“USD")
and Hong Kong dollars (“HKD"), and amounts
due from/to related parties denominated in
USD.
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3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 81 i $R R izt
For the year ended 31 December 2014

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

()

(ir)

3.

Er—
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BEEREE @)

(a) THEREE)

Foreign exchange risk (continued) () SMNEmSEE)
The functional currency of the Company and BERARB]AEEERA
its subsidiaries is RMB since the Company Al MEMKMBAR TEEPI
is an investment holding company and the IR WARNRI R E
operations carried out by its subsidiaries are in WEBARMINEEE 5 A
the PRC. R o
The Group's exposure to foreign exchange risk 7R £ B P O E R e TR
is limited to the recognised assets or liabilities, RERREEXEE -
such as trade and other receivables (Note 11), N8 5 N B b e W sk aE (bt
cash and bank balances (Note 12), borrowings Z11)  ReRBTHEE
(Note 15) and trade and other payables (Note (BF7E12) ~ B (HIFE15)
17). The Group does not hedge its foreign LA K B 5 Jo B Ath JiE 5 R IE
exchange risk during the year. (MIE17) - REERFR
A SR EINERE R
2013
=%
RMB'000
ARETT
— Post-tax profit increase/(decrease) — FrFi1& & F1E N
/CRA)
— Strengthened 5% —FHES% 342
— Weakened 5% —i2{BE5% (342)
Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (i) HERERDFEFER

Except for pledged bank deposits and cash at
bank (Note 12), the Group has no significant
interest-bearing assets. The Group’s income
and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates. Management does not anticipate
significant impact resulted from changes in
interest rates on interest bearing assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &3 B1 i $R R Mzt
For the year ended 31 December 2014

BE-F—ME+ = A=+ —FIEE

3.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(ir)

(iir)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(continued)

The Group's interest-rate risk arises from
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk. Borrowings obtained at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest-rate
risk. As at 31 December 2014, approximately
81% (2013: 80%) of the Group's borrowings
were at fixed rates and the remaining were
at floating rates. The Group does not hedge
its cash flow and fair value interest rate risk.
The interest rates and terms of repayments of
borrowings are disclosed in Note 15.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2014, if average
interest rates on bank borrowings which
had been 10% higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, the profit before
income tax for the years ended 31 December
2014 would have been decreased/increased
by RMB180,000(2013: RMB109,000),
respectively.

Price risk

Raw cotton and cotton yarns are the major
raw materials for the Group’s production.
They account for a substantial portion of
the Group’s costs of sales. The prices of
raw cotton and cotton yarns are affected by
various factors which are beyond the control
of the Group, such as changes in government
policies, the supply-demand relation and other
unexpected events. The fluctuations of the
price may have favourable or unfavourable
impacts on the Group. The Group monitors
the changes in the market price of raw cotton
and cotton yarns and makes purchases of
raw materials when the prices are considered
appropriate. The Group also maintains
inventory of raw materials at a lower level
when the market prices of raw cotton and
cotton yarns decrease continually within a
certain period. The Group did not enter into
any hedging of its price risk during 2014 and
2013.
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3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 381 % 3R R M =T

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
restricted bank deposits, trade and other receivables,
as well as credit exposures to customers, including
outstanding receivables, committed transactions and
financial guarantees provided to third parties and
related parties.

The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk. The carrying amounts of cash and bank
balances, restricted bank deposits, trade and other
receivables included in the consolidated financial
statements represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial
assets. As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, all
cash and cash equivalents and restricted bank
deposits were deposited into highly reputable and
sizable banks and financial institutions without
significant credit risk. For sales of goods, majority
of the Group's sales are settled in cash on delivery
of goods or advances before delivery. Credit will
only be granted to selected customers with long-
term relationship and good credit history. The
Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of its
customers’ financial conditions and has policies in
place to ensure that trade receivables are followed
up on a timely basis. Advances will only be granted
to third parties with long-term reliable relationship
and certain related parties. The Group performs
ongoing credit evaluations of their financial
conditions and monitors the timely collection of the
advances.

Liquidity risk

Cash flow is managed at group level by the finance
controller. The finance controller monitors the
Group's liquidity requirements to ensure that it has
sufficient cash to meet operational needs at all times
and does not breach borrowing limits or covenants
on any of its borrowing facilities. The finance
controller usually takes into consideration the
Group's debt financing plans, covenant compliance
and compliance with internal balance sheet ratio
targets.

The finance controller mainly invests surplus cash in
time deposits, with appropriate maturities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &3 B1 i $R R Mzt
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE=F— = A= — AU

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MERBREE@
(C) quutdlty risk (continued) (C) )ﬁﬁff/ﬁﬂﬁ(g)

TREZEEBENGOIEHA
ST HIRM G R A R W AR
BERAEETON - TREE
MEBEREORMARERE -

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet
date to the contractual maturity date. The
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amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual

undiscounted cash flows.

Lessthan  Between1  Between2 Over
Tyear and2years and 5 years 5 years Total
SME 1528 2255 Bi@sE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL  AEETT  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR
Group 158
At 31 December 2014 W=g-mE+=A=t-H
Borrowings (exclude finance lease liabilities) (31 Fa AR ETEA(E)
Interest payable on borrowings and EREZRERREHHE
unsecured bond
Borrowings - finance lease liabilities BR-BERERR
Trade and other payables BHREMENTE
At 31 December 2013 R=F-Z§+ZA=+-A
Borrowings (exclude finance lease liabilities)  fE# (T REREREAR) 177,182 18,545 66,815 - 262,542
Interest payable on borrowings ERESFIE 8,877 4127 2,567 - 15,571
Borrowings - finance lease liabilities ER-REHERE 5,883 1 - - 5,884
Trade and other payables BAREMERNTE 153,895 8,025 21,850 - 183,770
345,837 30,698 91,232 - 467,767
Company b NS
At 31 December 2014 R-Z2-mE+=A=t-H
Borrowings &R
Interest payable on unsecured bonds EREERES
Accruals and other payables TS REMENFE
At 31 December 2013 W-B-=f+-fA=1-A
Accruals and other payables JEs LAt EfTEE 9,282 - - - 9,282
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 381 % 3R R M =T

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeqguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for equity holder and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to equity holder, return capital to equity holder or sell
assets to reduce debt.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders or issue new shares.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as total debt divided by total equity. Total debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including current and non-
current borrowings as shown in the consolidated balance
sheets).

The gearing ratios are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE _E—FF_A=+—HIFFE

BEEREE @)

AEENEAEERREEREREE
REMAEERERE - RIS ARM
O3 - FSERREENRBIARDE
AFX - BERFRRABERRE A%
BRI BN TRERA ANRE
2H  BaBE ANODHRESRHESR
P DARRRAE RS o

REFLABENRE  AREES
HEXN TRERERNORESBKBEITH
%O

e JARSE/NC]  AERE R RS
BELRE 'L£$ SZttT’%ﬁ{ii%i@%E
R A A RERTH o BEISARERIRERE
B(RREHEERBRKRAIRNREE
AEIERBEROF

BB ELRFINT

2013

—F—=%F

RMB’000

AREFIT

Total borrowings (Note 15) Et%’ﬂi'g’gﬁ(muﬂ 5) 268,088
Amount due to related parties JE 1<) gk 8,283
Total debt Eissa%a 276,371

Less: Cash and bank balances (Note 12) & : IR & & #R1T88%8(F1EE12) (47,922)
Net debt 1B E%8 228,449
Total equity pr gk 266,918
Total capital RN 495,367
Net gearing ratio FERBEL R 46.1%
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The gearing ratio decreased from 46.1% as at 31
December 2013 to 28.6% as at 31 December 2014,
mainly due to the increase in total equity as a result of
the increase in share capital and other reserves after the
Company successfully completed the initial public offering
of its ordinary shares on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 25 April 2014.

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial assets
including trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and restricted bank deposits and financial
liabilities including trade and other payables and
borrowings are assumed to approximate their fair values
due to their short-term maturities or related liabilities
being charged at interest rates approximately to that
of market. The carrying values less any estimated credit
adjustments for financial assets with a maturity of less
than one year are a reasonable approximation of their fair
values.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experiences and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 381 % 3R R M =T

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continuea)

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitor actions in response to severe
industry cycles. Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete
or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

The Group’s management estimates the provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables by assessing
their recoverability. Provisions are applied to trade and
other receivables where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible and
require the use of estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact carrying value of trade and other receivable and
impairment charge in the period in which such estimate
has been changed.

The Group’s management estimates the provision of
impairment of inventories by assessing their net realisable
value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
to completion and estimated costs necessary to make the
sale. Provisions are applied to inventories where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the inventory
cost may exceed the net realisable value and require the
use of estimates. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact carrying
value of inventories and impairment charge in the period
in which such estimate has been changed.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE _E—FF_A=+—HIFFE

4. BRI RHAER @

AEBEEEETEYR  BELERE
R fE P RE R AERE T ER X © %
ERTERBEUEE RIERME - B
R BER AR BEERIE
- AT E BT AR SR R T R Y
BRIRRTT BB MERETE M HIRE R
&@ B ERFIER AT F S

5 BT RE T B R S SRS A
Wﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%%&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ#ﬁﬁ
HEE -

AEBEEEBRBTEE S REMBRK
FORE AU EIME SRR ERE R - &
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REMFNEEIR - BREE/TE
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AEEEEERBTEFRENAZRF
ERMEFTEBERE - 7T FERA
FEBBRET G EERE TR
ANHERATE - EHBREMHHIRE
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. EI#eit(hst R ¥
JUDGMENTS (continued)

The Group is mainly subject to income tax in the Mainland
China. Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income tax. There are some transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The
Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and provisions
in the year in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined
using income tax rates that are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax assets are realised or the
deferred income tax liabilities are settled. The expected
applicable income tax rate is determined based on the
enacted tax laws and regulations and the actual situation
of the Group. The management of the Group will revise
the expectation where the final income tax rate is different
from the original expectation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 381 % 3R R M =T

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive directors of the Company. The directors review the
Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources. The directors have determined the operating
segments based on these reports. The directors consider the
business and assess the performance on the basis of product
lines, including (i) fabrics and (ii) cotton yarns.

No geographical segment information is presented as more than
90% of the sales and operating profits of the Group are derived
within the PRC and substantially all the operating assets of the
Group are located in the PRC.

Segment assets consist primarily of land use rights, property,
plant and equipment, inventories, trade and other receivables
and prepayments. They exclude deferred income tax assets,
prepaid tax, restricted bank deposits and cash and bank
balances.

Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities. They exclude
borrowings, income tax liabilities and other payables due to
related parties.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—T—F+-—A=+—HILFZE
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The segment information is set out below:

The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2014

is as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2014 HE=—ZT—NF

t-A=t—-HLEE

22 EF @)
DEPERIEFT

HE_ZT-—NMF+_-_A=+—HIFENHD
BERT

Segment results DERELE

Segment revenue PaN=it i

Inter-segment sales DEEHE

External revenue ShER UL R

Segment profit 2 EEF

Other operating expenses HAg R

Other income and other losses H g A K E b Esia
— net — 35

Finance costs — net BhER A — FEE

Profit before income tax R PTIS L AT a7

Income tax expense SR>

Profit for the year FRRF

Other segment items HiynEER

Capital expenditure BRFAX

Amortisation of leasehold land ~ FH& £ ith [z + Hb{F FA#E
and land use right s

Depreciation of property, plant

and equipment

M BERRETE

As at 31 December 2014 R-ZZE—MFE
t=A=t—H

Segment asset and liabilities S XEEREE

Segment assets DEEE

Unallocated assets ROBLEE

Total assets EEHAE

Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

DEAE

ADBECRE

Total liabilities

BERE
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5- SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5- ﬁ%ﬁﬁ*ﬂ'(ﬁg)
The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2013 HE—T-—=F+-A=1+—HULEFEND
is as follows: BRI -
Fabrics Cotton yarns Total
[T Gir a5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREFIT AREFIT
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE_—ZF—=4%F
+ZBA=1+—HILEE
Segment results DEBEE
Segment revenue B 680,352 130,144 810,496
Inter-segment sales DEEEE - (18,978) (18,978)
External revenue ShEB Uk = 680,352 111,166 791,518
Segment profit 2 EREF 134,118 14,036 148,154
Other operating expenses HipaeE = (33,666)
Other income and other losses E AU A N B A 518
—net — 5 4,634
Finance costs — net REKA —F58 (15,632)
Profit before income tax & B S8 BE A 103,490
Income tax expense TS 2 (28,516)
Profit for the year FEREF 74,974
Other segment items HitnE1ER
Capital expenditure B 205,077 1,655 206,732
Amortisation of leasehold land HHE b N i B #E
and land use right s 499 32 531
Depreciation of property, plant % - BENRETE
and equipment 24,752 7,364 32,116
As at 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=%
+=A=+-—H
Segment asset and liabilities S IPEERERE
Segment assets DEPEE 626,142 99,994 726,136
Unallocated assets AOBEE 100,999
Total assets EELE 827,135
Segment liabilities HEEE 281,801 20,433 302,234
Unallocated liabilities AOBLEE 257,983
Total liabilities EEHE 560,217
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LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS -
GROUP

Leasehold land and land use rights represent the net book
amount of prepaid operating lease payments. All the land use
rights of the Group are located in the PRC and are held on
leases with remaining periods of between 41 to 50 years.

FAE -+ 0% + i I — A

ME TR L AEEMEERERA
FREF(E - NEEMA L EBELR S
C WIARIBREF 41 ES0FHERA o

2013

—E—=%F

RMB’000

AREFIT

Opening amount Hi¥ &R 25,221
Addition NE -
Amortisation (Note 20) B34 (FI7E20) (531)
Closing amount R & 24,690
Cost (DN 26,556
Accumulated amortisation E Ty (1,866)
Net book amount AREEE 24,690

The leasehold land and land use rights with net book value of
approximately RMB24,159,000 (2013: RMB19,769,000) as at
31 December 2014 were pledged as collaterals for certain bank
borrowings of the Group (Note 15).

Amortisation expense has been charged to “administrative
expenses” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

The Group has obtained land use right certificates of all the
leasehold land of the Group.
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7.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 7.

GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 381 % 3R R M =T

s

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—T—F+-—A=+—HILFZE

BER&ZE-FEE

Office

Machinery Equipment,
and Furniture Construction

Buildings equipment and vehicle in-progress Total
WAERE
BF HEREE HKARES HRIR @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBFT ARETT ARETT ARETH
At 1 January 2013 R=B-=%-8-H
Cost or valuation A EE 134,062 164,137 5,106 65,346 368,651
Accumulated depreciation e (19,102) (45,514) (1,040) - (65,656)
Net book amount REFE 114,960 118,623 4,066 65,346 302,995
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE-_B-=F
TZA=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount HREFE 114,960 118,623 4,066 65,346 302,995
Additions NE 873 3,401 911 201,547 206,732
Transfer from construction in BRIkBERIRES
progress upon completion 158,544 107,143 - (265,687) -
Disposals (Note 26) it & (PiEE26) - (142) - - (142)
Depreciation (Note 20) #r E(MEE20) (10,233) (21,273) (610) - (32,116)
Closing net book amount HRREFE 264,144 207,752 4,367 1,206 477,469
At 31 December 2013 R=Z-=F
T=A=t-H
Cost or valuation PR (E 293,479 274,304 6,017 1,206 575,006
Accumulated depreciation ZHrE (29,335) (66,552) (1,650) - (97,537)
Net book amount REFE 264,144 207,752 4,367 1,206 477,469
Year ended 31 December 2014 HE-E-MF
TZA=ZT-ALEE
Opening net book amount HRHEFE
Additions NE
Disposals (Note 26) & (Fi3E26)
Depreciation charges (Note 20) #HE(HI7E20)
Closing net book amount HAREREEE
At 31 December 2014 R-B-I§
tT-A=t-H
Cost or valuation A (E
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE
Net book amount REFE
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EFr_
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FEFEf —A=+—HIFFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT -
GROUP (continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2014, the Group
capitalised interest on borrowings amounting to approximately
RMB3,198,000 (2013: RMB1,181,000) on qualifying assets.
Borrowing costs were capitalised at the weighted average rate
of 9.72% (2013: 10.23%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2014, buildings of the Group with
net book value of approximately RMB221,586,000 (2013:
RMB100,512,000), and machinery and equipment of the Group
with net book value of approximately RMB59,770,000 (2013:
RMB38,920,000), were pledged as collaterals for certain bank
borrowings of the Group (Note 15(a)).

As at 31 December 2014, machinery and equipment of the
Group with net book value of approximately RMB54,074,000
(2013: RMB111,445,000) were pledged as collaterals for certain
other borrowings of the Group (Note 15(c)).

7.

M -~ BENHE-AEE @

REBEE-_ZT—NW+_A=+—HIEFE "
REBEGREEREERBEBERFBERLD
AR®3,198,0007t (=T —=4F : AR
1,181,0007T) ° f& B A A B & p4E 15 F 7
EKIT2%(ZE—=F :10.23%) TUAER
1t »

RZE—NF+—_A=+—8  AEEK®A
FEABHAREE221,586,000L (T —=
£ AR¥100,512,0007T) (B F - A KRA
EEREFE AL ARES9,770,000T( ==

— =% : AR¥38,920,0007T) K25 & 28 1%
EIEARSEE S TIRITERRIEE R (T
15(a)) °

RZZE-—NF+_A=+—H KXEEKH

SEELHANRMES4,074,0000 (ZFE—=F: A
R #111,445,0007T ) B9 25 & iR B L H# VE

AREEE T EAME R ER R (PRE15(0)

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the net book value of the EA —ER_ZBE-—=ZF+A=+—
Group's machinery and equipment under finance leases were as ZIK% £l ﬂﬁfﬂ,\lﬁ—ﬁ&%g& S ARE
follows: @‘TE!ZDT :

2013

—ZT—=F

RMB’'000

AREFT

Cost B AR 16,325
Accumulated depreciation 2EHE (3,323)

Net book amount BREDFE 13,002
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—T—F+-—A=+—HILFZE

8. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS - 8. AftHELREE—4&£H
GROUP
2013
—_E—=fF
RMB’'000
ARETT
Investment in unlisted equity, at cost JEETRAIRE - LG -
The unlisted equity investment represents a 10% equity LT RARZRER R R BRI S R B
interest in a finandcial institution in Hubei, the PRC. This equity OO/OHX$$¢/\ © ZERAIE I T B TIS
investment does not have quoted market prices in an active WE - MARAESRA - ARZEMFH
market and the directors of the Company consider the fair ARE M RE S AT G - TR B AT
values cannot be reliably measured as the probabilities of the (=
various estimates cannot be reasonably assessed.
9. INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE 9. Wﬁ DA HREREWHELQ
FROM SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY BIFRIE Z|K’l\\ a)
2013
—T-=F
RMB’'000
ARBTT
Unlisted shares, at cost REITIRD - KA ET 241,413
Due from subsidiaries FEUHT B A FI5RIE -

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,non-interest
bearing and are repayable within one year.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set
out in Note 30.

FEUTPH 8 A RIR AR - At B RER
—FRA -

RATEZHE AR RBAAE IR RE30
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—T—F+-—A=+—HIFE

10. INVENTORIES - GROUP

10. FE-F5H

2013

—E—=F

RMB’000

AREFIT

Raw materials B R 38,298
Work-in-progress TR 19,887
Finished goods R 17,462
75,647

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in ‘cost of sales’ amounted to RMB582,192,000 (2013:
RMB568,395,000).

The Group did not recognise a provision in respect of the
obsolete inventories and write down of inventories to their net
realisable value for the year ended 31 December 2013 and
2014.

HRAMY BT ANEERAE INFEERA A
AR¥E582,192,0000( —F—=4F : AR
568,395,0007T) °

REZE-_ZTZ—=K_T-—NFE+_A
“t—RLFE  AKEYELREFTHRE
R E IR B =R AT R FE

11. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 11. ES RHEMERFRE-AEER
PREPAYMENTS — GROUP AND COMPANY P/ N/NET
Group Company
KEH RAFE]
2013 2013
—E-=4 —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT ARBEFIT
Trade receivables 2 5 WA 75,158 -
Bills receivables R EIE 29,930 -
105,088 -
Prepayments for purchase of B[R
raw materials SEANE 41,539 -
Deductible value-added tax AIFR G E TR
("VAT") ([EEF]) 18,898
Others Hib 1,703 1,234
62,140 1,234
167,228 1,234

The Group has a large number of customers, mainly in Fujian
province and nearby regions. There is no concentration of credit
risk with respect to trade receivables. The maximum exposure
to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each
class of receivables mentioned above.
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11. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

PREPAYMENTS - GROUP AND COMPANY

(continued)

The Group generally grants credit terms of less than 90 days to
its customers in Mainland China and 120 days to its customers
in other countries. The ageing analysis of the trade and bills
receivables by invoice date is as follows:

11.

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—T—F+-—A=+—HILFZE

REMERHE - AEER

A (&)

/)

B2
AN

AREBE—RAFEAMELK T THEBI0H
MEEH  RAEMEREFETI1200K
FEH - EZRURFANEREERIEEER
BRI T -

S
=

i)

2013

—EF—=%F

RMB’000

AREFIT

Within 3 months 3M@AAR 96,991
4 to 6 months 4%261E A 8,095
Over 6 months 61E A LA 2
Trade and bills receivables — net B S REINEIE K RN R E — 55 105,088

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, trade receivables of
approximately RMB54,208,000 and RMB8&,097,000 were
aged more than 3 months and regarded as past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers
for whom there is no significant financial difficulty and based on
past experience, the overdue amount can be recovered.

Trade and other receivables and prepayments are denominated
in the following currencies:

R-E—NMER - E—=F+-/F=+—
B E5EWEIELH ARYS4,208,0007T &
AR #8,097,000 L Wy AR ER HB 1B 38 A R 4%
REBHERRE ZEFFEESERER
PERHENBLIEFPEBERIREATERE
R BR R IE A Y2l o

£ 5 R B OB R YA T 8
HE

2013
—EF—=F
RMB’000
AREFIT

RMB
usb
HKD

AR
e

BT

165,836

1,392

167,228

The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables and
prepayments approximated their fair values as at the balance
sheet date.

REER - B 5 NE b EWIE RN AR
EEEE N TERE -
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12.

98 WANG TAI HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND
RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS — GROUP AND
COMPANY

12. BERBORBEURZIREET
FR-AEERERQF

Group Company
rEHE NN
2013 2013
T —E-=F
Cash and bank balances RE RIRTTERRR
— Cash at bank and in hand —iRITEFERE 47,922 -
— Time deposits —EHTFR - -
47,922 -
Restricted bank deposits SR GISRITIERK 32,799 -

The restricted bank deposits represented deposits pledged
as security for issuing bank acceptance notes (bills payables).
The restricted bank deposits have deposit periods within one
year and are interest bearing at 3% (2013: 2.76%) per annum
during the year ended 31 December 2014.

The time deposits as at 31 December 2014 have original
maturity within one year.

Cash and bank balances are denominated in the following
currencies:

RBHIRITFFTEERERBRITEALER

(BREE)WEROER

SR HIRITER

NEFIHAE—F2R HE-_Z—NF+—
A=T—HLFE  BFFEIR(ZE—=
F:2.76%)5T R o

RIZE-—NF=A=+—0H  THERREI

HAS—FA -

B MRTTHREA TG HEHE -

Group Company
rEE RAFE

2013 2013
—T-=F —T=F
RMB AR 47,816 -
HKD BT 105 -
usb ETT 1 -
47,922 -

All restricted bank deposits are denominated in RMB.
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BE—T—F+-—A=+—HILFZE

13. SHARE CAPITAL - GROUP AND COMPANY 13. B -AEERE QT

Number of Share
shares captial
BB EE [N
(thousands) HKD'000
(F5) FHET
Authorised: VERE
As at 29 April 2013 R=-ZB—=FMA=+NAH

(date of incorporation) till (R B)E=-ZE—=%

31 December 2013 +=-—B=+—H 10,000 1,000
Increase in authorized shares (i) EANEERL®) 9,990,000 999,000
As at 31 December 2014 R-ZE—MONE+—-A=+—H 10,000,000 1,000,000

Number of
shares Share captial
BREE [N
(thousands) HKD’000 RMB'000
(F8) FAT ARBT T
Issued and fully paid: BRS¢
As at 29 April 2013 N-=—=F§
(date of incorporation) till mA=+hB(KRI
31 December 2013 A)E-E—=%
+=BA=+—H 10 1 1
Issue of ordinary shares to BTEBI TR

original shareholders (ii) P8 (i) 749,990 74,999 59,414
Issue of ordinary shares upon BRARBER

initial public offering (iii) AT E AR (i) 260,000 26,000 20,800
As at 31 December 2014 N-E—NEF

+=A=+—H 1,010,000 101,000 80,215
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE=F— = A= — AU

13. SHARE CAPITAL - GROUP AND COMPANY 13. [RZA& — AEBR A 2D 7 @)

(continued)

Notes:

(i) On 27 March 2014, the authorised share capital of
the Company was increased from HKD1,000,000 to
HKD1,000,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each.

(i)~ On 27 March 2014, the directors of the Company were
authorised to capitalise an amount of HKD74,999,000
standing to the credit of the share premium account of the
Company by applying such sum in paying up in full at par
749,990,000 shares, such shares to be allotted and issued
to the original shareholders of the Group whose names
appearing on the register of members of the Company at
the close of business on 27 March 2014.

(i)~ On 25 April 2014, the Company'’s shares were listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
following the completion of its initial public offering of
260,000,000 ordinary shares at HK$0.72 per share to the
investors. The proceeds of HKD 26,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB20,800,000), representing per value of
the ordinary shares of the Company, were credited to the
Company'’s share capital account. The remaining proceeds
of HKD 151,596,250 (equivalent to approximately
RMB121,277,000), after deducting listing expenses, were
credited to the Company'’s share premium account.

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) on 27 March 2014. Pursuant to the Scheme,
share options to subscribe for an aggregate of 50,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company were granted to certain
directors of the Company and selected customers and
suppliers on 12 December 2014. The options granted are
exercisable from the date of grant for a period of one
year, and at an exercise price of HK$0.978 per share.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options in cash. No options have
been exercised since the date of grant to 31 December
2014.

The value of the options granted during the year was
determined using the Binomial Model. The significant
inputs into the model included the weighted average
share price of HK$0.960 at the grant date, exercise
price of HK$0.978 per share, volatility of 35.56%. The
total share-based compensation expense recognised
in the income statement for the share options granted
amounted to RMB5,064,000, of which RMB2,026,000
was charged to offset sales revenue, RMB1,519,000 was
charged to cost of sales and RMB1,519,000 was charged
to general and administrative expenses, for the year ended
31 December 2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 381 % 3R R M =T

14. OTHER RESERVES — GROUP AND COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—T—F+-—A=+—HILFZE

14. Efbfdte - A RERE QT

Share Share-based
premium Capital Compensation Statutory
account reserve reserve reserves Total
RAER
RVEER NE 1 B X EE b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETT  ARETR
At 1 January 2013 RZE-=%-F-H - 105,476 - 7,906 113,382
Waiver of amounts due to owners  EARENHEEAZ LS - 8,034 - - 8,034
Appropriation to statutory reserves BB AT HE - - - 8,850 8,850
At 31 December 2013 R-B-=%&
+=A=+-H - 113,510 - 16,756 130,266

Issue of ordinary shares upon the

initial public offering (Note 13(a)iii))

Share-based compensation
(Note 13(b))

Capitalisation for issue of ordinary
shares to original shareholders

RERCREERET
LR (FirEE13(a)ii)

IR ERERE (MEE13(0)

BTRRRTRERE

(Note 13 (a)(i) B (MEE13(a)i)
Appropriation to statutory reserves  EEE AT RIE
At 31 December 2014 R=2-R%
+=R=+-8H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 3 81 % R R B =T

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—T—F+-—A=+—HIFE

14. OTHER RESERVES — GROUP AND COMPANY 14.

(continued)

Notes:

(a) Capital reserves
The capital reserves of the Group mainly represent the reserves
arising from the reorganisations.

In June 2013, Mr. Lin, Mr Qiu and Mr. Cai waived the
considerations payable by the Group’s companies to them as the
owners of the Group for the acquisition of the companies now
comprising the Group during the reorganisation in 2010.

(b) Statutory reserves
In accordance with PRC regulations and the articles of association
of the companies now comprising the Group, before distributing
the net profit of each year, companies registered in the PRC
are required to set aside 10% of its statutory net profit for the
year after offsetting any prior year's losses as determined under
relevant PRC accounting standards to the statutory surplus
reserve fund. When the balance of such reserve reaches 50%
of each company’s share capital, any further appropriation is

Hittf#f - AKERA DT @

Mg

(a) EAfRE
FEEEARBBEEIZIEEAEENER -

RIB—=FF kL  BEERSESE
ok —T-TESABREEAREER A
BETREERAREEA ARSI
HE-

(b) EERSEES

REBHEDER K B AT AL E R BRA L
BRAA - RO RS FEAFF - AHEE
M ARIZABRHERERATR S EAE
HIBER L —FERNERIREENF AT
MRE0%EEERBFHES - EXFHES
HREEER A RRAMNS0% R AER T BE
B o

optional.
Share Share-based
premium  compensation Capital
account reserve reserve Total
RODER
R EER R EXfGE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARBETFT ARETT AEBTT
At 29 April 2013 R-EB-=FMA=1hA
(date of incorporation) (MR BE) - - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries U BENT B A E] - - 241,482 241,482
R=B-=F+=AH
At 31 December 2013 =+-H - - 241,482 241,482
Issue of ordinary shares upon the R E R AREER T
initial public offering L@k 121,277 - - 121,277
Capitalisation for issue of ordinary /7@K T RIARE
shares to original shareholders &7k, (59,414) - - (59,414)
Share-based compensation P8 An E R R A - 5,064 - 5,064
Balance at 31 December 2014 R=T—-NE+=A
=t-Az&sH 61,863 5,064 241,482 308,409
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 81 i $R R izt
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—T—F+-—A=+—HILFZE

15. BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY 15. ER—FEEREAT
Group Company
rEE ¥ NN
2013 2013
—T—=F —ZF—=
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Current TE
Bank borrowings (a) RITE ()
— short term — secured — RS- HIEE 101,000 -
— short term — unsecured — R — mIR R 44,930 -
— current portion of long —REEFRTENE
term — secured n—HBHEHR 7,750 -
— current portion of long —Eﬁmﬁﬂﬁ
term — unsecured — A - -
Finance lease liabilities Eﬁﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ% 5,545
Other borrowings - secured (b)  E &z — B (b) 18,502 -
Loan from government BER
— unsecured (c) . Tiivtil(e) 5,000 -
182,727 -
Non-current ¥RE
Bank borrowings — secured RITREF — A 22,587 -
Bank borrowings — unsecured  $R1TfE 5 — AEIKIA - -
Finance lease liabilities MEHEEEE 1
Other borrowings - secured (b)  E &z — B (b) 12,773 -
Loan from government BER
— unsecured (c) . Tiivtil(e) 50,000 -
Bonds — unsecured (d) &% — I () - -
85,361 -
Total borrowings e 268,088 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 3 81 % R R B =T

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE _ET—IFEF+_A=+—HIFE

15. BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY

(continued)

The Group's bank borrowings were repayable as follows:

15. BER—AREERAEQT @

AEBEREENRITEROT

2013
—E-=F
RMB’000
ARBT T

Within one year

Between 1 and 2 years
Between 2 and 3 years
Between 3 and 4 years

1R

1824
2E3F
3E44F

153,680
8,452
9,218
4,917

176,267

The bank borrowings were secured by the Group’s

leasehold land and land use rights (Note 6) and property,

plants and equipment (Note 7).

The weighted average effective interest rate on bank
borrowings was 10.76% (2013: 6.38%) per annum for
the years ended 31 December 2014.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings
approximated their fair value as at the balance sheet
dates, and were all denominated in RMB.

The Group had the following undrawn bank borrowing

facilities as at the balance sheet dates:

RITERBASBENEE 30 M 306
P (KFE6) Mm% - ME Ka s (Mt
AE7) VR

Hze-_ZZ—N&F+-_A=+—H1t
FE $E171ﬁ*”bu%$i’]¢7’HJTﬁ
10.76%(—Z— =% : 6.38%) °

WEER - AEERITERRIERER
”Dﬂﬁﬁﬁ% DBL/{}\EME‘I‘TE ©

WEER - AEEEAR LT AREZERRT
ERBERE

2013
—EF—=F
RMB’000
AREF T

— Expiring within one year
— Expiring beyond one year

——FREH
——FR 3]

115,371
50,000

165,371
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 81 i $R R izt
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—T—F+-—A=+—HILFZE

15. BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY

(continued)

15. fER-FAEERE 2T @)

EEREETHEARNE @ WK
EERAZE—UF+-_A=+—8KA
HEAARES4,074,000T( ZF—=
£ 0 AR#B111,445,0007T ) B & T #
22 KR AR AR AR o

BE-T-Fk=_F-HNF+=A
=T HIEFERSF  EMERMN
HEFHEBRMNES R AEEF13.35% K&
13.35% ©

The other borrowings were obtained from certain
leasing companies and secured by the Group's certain
machinery and equipment with net book value amounting
to RMB54,074,000 (2013: RMB111,445,000) as at 31
December 2014.

The weighted average effective interest rate on other
borrowings was 13.35%, and 13.35% per annum for
each of the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014,
respectively.

REHE B - AEEEAME R EREE N
ARBEHERREAERS -

The carrying amounts of the Group’s other borrowings
were denominated in RMB and approximated their fair
value as at the balance sheet dates.

R-ZZF—MFNA - {EEH T
WEBHERARKSOAE TIERER
AEEMBLARZROHIDNRE - &
REFREGIE - BR_F—RFN
AZBHEE -

In September 2014, the Group obtained a loan of
RMB50 million from the local government of Huang Mei
County for the purpose of financing the development
of Hongsheng (Hubei), a subsidiary of the Group. The
interest rate of the loan is 3% per annum and repayable
in full in September 2016.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s government loans
were denominated in RMB and approximated their fair
value as at the balance sheet dates.

REBENBFEFREETIAARER
B REEEEAQFERS -

On 23 July 2014, the Company issued HKD 35,000,000
(equivalent to RMB27,734,000) bonds, due on 23 July
2021. The Bonds are unsecured and carry a nominal
interest at a rate of 7% per annum, with the interest
being payable annually.

RZE—NWE+RA=+=H  AQF
#%1735,000,0008 7T (FHE R AR
27,734,000L) &% R=ZZE=-—Ft
A=Z+=H38 - WEEHHEET
BREFHNEI%E  FEFFX

i e
16 DEFERRED INCOME - GROUP 16. IEEWA —F&EH
Group
AEE
2013
—E—=fF
RMB’'000
ARETTT
Government grants relating to leasehold land ~ ERFR S + ith & + 3 5 FA 4
and land use right BRENEFEE 14,265
Government grants relating to plant and HAH 55 M 34 8 R ) U
equipment B 2,680
16,945

EAERERAA 2014 EEHRE 105



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &3 B1 i $R R Mzt
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE=F— = A= — AU

16 DEFERRED INCOME - GROUP (continued) 16. iﬁgﬁu&)\_m%(ﬁ)
The movements of the above government grants during the it TR BN AR EE T
year were as follows:
At beginning of the year F40 14,557
Granted during the year FRFEL 2,680
Amortised as income (Note 19) AW A (MFE19) (292)
At end of the year FR 16,945
17. DEFERRED INCOME TAX — GROUP 17. BEREHR —FEE
The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred income BEFTSHEENMELEMEHABEN DTS
tax liabilities is as follows: e
2013
—E-=fF
RMB’000
ARBTFT
Deferred income tax assets: BIEFTRTHEE ¢
- Deferred income tax assets to be recovered — — ¥+ — [ A 18 Y& [@l B9 iE T
after more than 12 months FriSFiEE (448)
— Deferred income tax assets to be recovered — — A+ 1 A WY Bl FYiE T
within 12 months FriStiEE 1,828
1,380
The movements in deferred tax assets during the year are as RIEFETHEERFANESHAT
follows:
Capitalised Accrued Deferred
interest payroll income Others Total
EX{RIE EstTE ELBA Hitt @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTL  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR

At 1 January 2013 RZE-=F—f—-H (1,266) 1,007 - 702 443
(Charge)/credit to the consolidated ~ RAHZENGER
statement of comprehensive income  (¥15) /5 A (226) 736 670 (243) 937
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=4%F
+-A=1+—-H (1,492) 1,743 670 459 1,380
(Charge)/Credit to the consolidated ~ AAH2EKER
statement of comprehensive income  (31%&) /3t A (100) 714 a1 (452) 583
At 31 December 2014 RZT—mF
+-A=+—-H (1,593) 2,456 1,091 9 1,963
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 81 i $R R izt
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—T—F+-—A=+—HILFZE

18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES - GROUP 18. ES R EMEMNRE - AEBER
AND COMPANY P/ N/NE]
Group Company
rEE NN
2013 2013
T —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREETTT ARETT
Non-current FEBNEA
Payables for purchase of BEYWE BEX
property, plant and BABIEROE
equipment 29,875 -
Current ENA
Trade payables B S ENFHIE 40,200 -
Bills payables JERTEREE 70,498 -
110,698 -
Advanced payments from BPBX
customers 54,944 -
Amounts due to related parties JE1{< BaB4 7 28
(Note 29) (M¥5E29) 8,283 4,820
Salary and welfare payables JFE 1t S B N @ 7| 6,968 -
Payables for purchase of BEME  BER
property, plant and BABIE KA
equipment 27,967 -
Other taxes payable Hfth FE R IE 8,785 -
Accrued professional fees in BB AREBE
respect of the initial public RESTEEE
offering 2,285 -
Other payables H th AT 5RIR 6,947 5,806
116,179 10,626
226,877 10,626
Total A 256,752 10,626
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 3 81 % R R B =T

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE _ET—IFEF+_A=+—HIFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES - GROUP
AND COMPANY (ontinued)

The ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables is as follows:

18. BEZRHMENRE - FTREER

AT
B RENZERERONET -

Group
AEH
2013
—_ZT—=F
RMB'000
ARBETTT

Within 3 months AR
4 months to 12 months 421218 A
Over 12 months 1218 A LA E

98,434
12,174
90

110,698

Advanced payment from customers represent cash advances
received from customers for purchases of the Group’s products
and will be applied to settlements when sales occur.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables
approximated their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

Trade and other payables are denominated in the following

BEFBHEREPWEIR S BT LAE%,\ZIKE
BRER - WHNIHEEERRERS -

REER  AEEHE S MEMENRIENE
EEEERNTERE °

5 MEMENRIBEITIIEREE

currencies:
2013
—EF—=F
RMB’000
ARBT T
RMB AR 246,126
usD ETT -
HKD BIT 10,626
256,752
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 381 % 3R R M =T

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—T—F+-—A=+—HILFZE

19. OTHER INCOME 19. HAWA
2013
=%
RMB’'000
ARETT
Government grants received IR TR 5,030
Amortisation of deferred income of A ERBIRTRHEE
government grants relating to RIEW A
assets (Note 16) (ME16) 292
5,322
20. EXPENSES BY NATURE 20. BB TR
2013
—E—=fF
RMB’'000
ARETT
Raw materials and consumables used BT FB R 8 B B #E 558,534
Change of inventories of finished goods and XM MERBEFEE
work in progress = 9,861
Employee benefit expenses EERAIFX 25,345
Amortisation of leasehold land and TRE Tt e+ F A4
land use rights i 531
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BERREITE
equipment 32,116
Repairs and maintenance expenses HIERERX 865
Miscellaneous tax charges other than FrIG(ER & TS RLING
VAT and income tax IR E R 6.837
Utility expenses UNZES 1S 25,990
Auditors’ remuneration ZEMB 2 4,062
Advertisement expenses BEERX 200
Professional fees in respect of the initial BN ARBEEDN
public offering EXER 5,424
Office and other expenses WAEREMFT 7,265
Total of cost of sales, selling and SHEMNA  SHE RO H
distribution costs and general and B K —R% KA TIER
administrative expenses FZ 85t 677,030
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &3 B1 i $R R Mzt
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE=F— = A= — AU

21. EMPLOYMENT COSTS, INCLUDING 21. BERAS(BEESHS)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

2014 2013
—E-NEF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T AR¥ETT

Wages, salaries and bonuses I& - ekt 21,559 20,145
Pension costs RIKERAR 3,172 1,816
Medical, housing and other benefits BEE BEMEMET 3,093 3,384
27,824 25,345
At 31 December 2014, the Group had no forfeited contributions RZZE—WOF+A=+—H  ~EELE
available to reduce its contributions to the pension schemes in BRI Z AT BEFR R SR B R R IR B 5T
future years (2013: Nil). SR T —=F &) -
22. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 22. EER SR EEEHH
EMOLUMENTS
The remuneration of each director of the Company for the year HEZZ—WUF+_A=1+—HILFEELA
ended 31 December 2014 is set out below: RAIBSESHMEEIIT -
Bonus
Name of Director Fees Salaries  (Discretionary) Pension Other benefits Total
BEE=fR ik M a4 Birg HiiER| @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFL  ARBTL  ARBFL  AR®Fr  ARBFr  ARETR
Executive directors HTEE
Mr. Lin (Chairman) WhEE(EE) - 115 - 3 3 121
Mr. Qiu il - 115 - 3 3 121
Mr. Deng i fta - 103 - 3 3 109
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive directors
Yu Yubin aE 63 - - - - 63
Ma Chongg BER 63 - - - - 63
Chan Sui Wa PRinaE 63 - - - - 63
189 333 - 9 9 540
Other benefits mainly represent housing allowance and other HtEhEERFEREEU REMHSRER
social security benefits. A e
None of the directors waived any emoluments during the year REBEZE_Z—NF+_A=T—BILFE -
ended 31 December 2014 (2013: nil). BESEERETMHe(ZE—=F: &) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 381 % 3R R M =T

22. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

EMOLUMENTS (ontinuea)
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include three (2013: three) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments payable to the remaining two non-director (2013:
two) individuals are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—T—F+-—A=+—HILFZE

22. EENSREEETFM @

RAFE  AEEBLERSHFMALERS
REEE BR=REF(ZT—=F:=
) ZREENFIRER EXAES5S
o BN TMAIFERERIAL(ZFT—=
F o mAR)NMEIOT

2013

—EF—=%F

RMB’000

ARBT T

Salaries B 528
Bonus (Discretionary) TEAT(B)1S) -
Pension costs RIRERA 25
Medical, housing and other benefits BE EENEMEF 9
562

During the year ended 31 December 2014, no emoluments
were paid by the Company to any of the directors or the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2013:
nil).

The number of highest paid non-director individuals, whose
remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013
fell within the following bands:

RBE-ZT-—NO+-_A=+—BILFE K
RAMEENINESFAAREHHMAL
M (ERIAREEN RS RIMAREE
BRORRHE (T —=F 1 &) -

EEFMOEEEALOAL  ERBE=
ToNER-F-=F+-A=+—HItF
EHHHEEDT ;

2013
—E—=4F

Nil to RMB800,000 T AR¥800,0007T (HHE R
(equivalent to Nil to HKD1,000,000) Z %1,000,0007%7T.) 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &3 B1 i $R R Mzt
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE=F— = A= — AU

23. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 23. MBRARBERAE
2013
==
RMB’'000
AREFT
Finance income: TSI -
Interest income on bank deposits RITIF R FBUA (1,368)
Finance cost: BATERAR :
Interest expense on bank borrowings HRITIERH B FASZ 12,518
Interest expense on finance leases and other  BVEMHE & E (&7 HY
borrowings FERE 4,640
Less: capitalised interest expense (Note 7) B B BRI (KFE7) (1,181)
Bank charges RITFEE 1,023
Finance costs-net BB AT 17,000
Net finance costs BEKAFE 15,632
24. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 24. FREBIAX
The amount of income tax charged to the consolidation income RE R NRAAEHeRER -
statement represents:
2013
—E—=F
RMB’'000
ARBFT
Current income tax BVERERTSHE 29,453
Deferred income tax (Note 17) BIEFTS A (MRE17) (937)
28,516
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 81 i $R R izt
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—T—F+-—A=+—HILFZE

24- INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 24- Fﬁ?%ﬁr&ﬁi(?g)
The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the AREEBRAGHINEAAORIE - BEAEA
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average REHEEEFMINEFOR EGEELIRR
tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities, as TEERERENT ¢
follows:
2013
=%
RMB’'000
ARBTFT
Profit before income tax R PT1S R AR 71 103,490
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates of 25%  REHRR25% (T —=4F :
(2013: 25%) 25% )t ERITIR 25,873
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AR 2,643
Tax charges MR 28,516

The Company is not subject to any taxation in the Cayman
Islands.

Subsidiaries established in Hong Kong are subject to
income tax at rate of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%).

In accordance with the Corporate Income Tax Law of the
PRC, subsidiaries of the Group established in Mainland
China are subject to EIT at rate of 25% (2013: 25%)
during the year.

According to the New CIT Law, starting form 1 January
2008, a 10% withholding tax will be levied on the
immediate holding company established out of the PRC
when their PRC subsidiary declares dividends out of their
profits earned after 1 January 2008. A lower withholding
tax rate of 5% may be applied if there is a tax treaty
arrangement between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the
foreign immediate holding company.

No deferred income tax liabilities for unremitted earnings
of the PRC subsidiaries that was earned from 1 January
2008 to 31 December 2014 have been recognised as
there is no plan of distribution of dividends from such
earnings in the foreseeable future. Management intend to
reinvest such earnings in the PRC permanently.

RRRBAGREARSESHEA

REBKILWNE QR BT
B MEAE165% (T — =14 :
16.5%) °

BB ERERANEME M
TR AR BRI ST H AR E B E A
RIZEBMTERBI  MEAE25% (=
T—=F :25%) °

BB CEMESRAN —ZTNFE— A
—HFELE  EPRBIRINEHER A RA
FEMBAREME _EENFE—F—
A& PINFIEIRERS - I
UWEL10% IR TR o a0 Rz g oME
A RIHEHIRRBRE RS ER T
AT A E S % SR EARINRTLR -

B A R HOR A At B A IR B AR
B AR —ETN\F-—A—RE=-F
—F+-—A=1+—RREHEAPEM
B 2R EAEL A FE 2 EER AR A
& - EEERRKAERETBEITER
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25. EARNINGS PER SHARE

On 25 April 2014, the Company's shares were listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited following the completion of its initial public
offering of 260,000,000 ordinary shares at HK$0.72 per
share to the investors.

The basic earnings per share is calculated based on the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for
the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 and on the
assumption that 750,000,000 Shares, (including 10,000
shares issued after the completion of the Reorganisation
and the capitalisation issue of 749,990,000 shares
pursuant to the shareholders’ resolutions dated 27 March
2014), were deemed to have been issued since 1 January
2013.

Profit attributable to equity holders of RRRIERFFE ABIERT
the Company (RMB’000) (AR®FITT)
Weighted average number of ordinary BT BRI

shares in issue (thousands) (FR%)

25. SRER

R-E-NEMA-—+ARE  2FER
N EEITID AERR0. 728 T AR
B 21T B A% 260,000,000 A% 19 72
Ri% - ANRARRDREBBAER S A
RARERED -

SRERBFTIRBERABEEHEA
REEZZE—WFER-_ZT—=F+=A
—t+—HILFERGEMNFTE  TER
750,000,000 f% fz 0 (B IER EMH T
X% B 3 178910,0000% RIRE B H A
TENFEZA T EANBREREER
#)E AL B 17749,990,000 % A% 19 ) B
REBE-_E—=F—A—HBBEHT -

74,974

750,000

Basic earnings per share (RMB per share) FREREF(AREFR)

10.00 cents%

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. The Company’s share options have no dilutive
effect on the earnings per share as at 31 December 2014.
Calculations are done to determine the number of shares
that could have been acquired at fair value (determined
by using average market share price of the Company’s
shares for the year ended 31 December 2014) based on
the monetary value of the subscription rights attached to
outstanding share options. Diluted earnings per share is
therefore equal to basic earnings per share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 381 % 3R R M =T

26. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

The reconciliation from profit before income tax to cash

For the year ended 31 December 201

4

HE—FE—FE+ —HA=1+—HIFE

26. REFABEE

B P 1S B A M B AR 2 TS AV IR 2 /O B RR A0

generated from operations is as follows: T
2013
=%
RMB'000
ARETT
Profit before income tax R PRS0 AR 71 103,490
Adjustments for: FATSIEELAE
— Amortisation of leasehold land and — & i L A
land use right (Note 6) 5H (M5Te) 531
— Depreciation of property, plant and — W% - BB REREITE
equipment (Note 7) (FF3E7) 32,116
— Losses on disposal of property, —EWE - BB REED
plant and equipment 518 90
— Amortisation of deferred income — IRIEUR A 5 (292)
— Finance income (Note 22) — IS (Bt3E22) (1,368)
— Finance costs (Note 22) — BB (F3E22) 17,000
Changes in working capital (excluding LIEESEE)
the effects of exchange differences on (MR AGHER B B
consolidation): M EREE
— Inventories —FE (13,114)
— Trade and other receivables — B 5 R EMEWFIE (82,992)
— Trade and other payables — B S RAMERFIE (100,000)
Cash generated from operations KEFTSHIRE 79,232

In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds from disposal

EattREeRERT  HEME  BFENMR

of property, plant and equipment: HAERIERRE
2013
—E—=fF
RMB'000
ARETT
Net book amount — property, plant and REFE-UE  BEX
equipment (Notes 7) A (M5E7) 142
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BERRER
equipment and land use right TR ETE (90)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - WE NMEREM
plant and equipment and land use right T FAHEFTIS FOE 52
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27. COMMITMENTS 27. EiE

Capital expenditures at the balance sheet date that have REERRMAREENERRAT :
not been incurred are as follows:

2013
—_ZT—=F
RMB’'000
ARBFT
Property, plant and equipment Contracted Y% - BB KRB
but not provided for EETHME R -
The Group leases various land, offices and warehouses REERBETATHEAEREHERSE
under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The T WAEREE o RIBEZETAH
future aggregate minimum lease payments under non- IS E LR R RSB E R A
cancellable operating leases are as follows: K
2013
—T-=F
RMB'000
AREFT
No later than 1 year TER—F 797
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years —4F#&EBTNENTF 997
1,794
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28. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28. BHARS
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the B AR EERBEEESR — A
ability, directly or indirectly, control the other party or exercise P REERE FWEITHFEEATES - A
significant influence over the other party in making financial and BHIRR BB - HEE T HRITEH - Z
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if B IMEAR AR -

they are subject to common control.

The related party that had transactions with the Group is as EAREEHITR BB T
follows:
Name of related Relationship with the Group )y HAEBENEE
party
Mr. Lin Founding shareholder of the Company b Stasd PN/ = oF =l
There is no transaction with the related party during the RIE—NER-ZT—=4F fEHEH
year 2014 and 2013. S EITR S -
2013
—E—=fF
RMB’'000
ARBFIT
Other payable to Mr. Lin JERTARSE A ) B Ath FRIE 8,283
The balance with the related party is unsecured, non- EARAEE T AR R RIER - RE R —
interest bearing and repayable within one year. FRNEE -
2013
—T-=F
RMB'000
AREFTT
Salaries, wages and bonuses B - T& RIE4T 1,073
Pension cost HE NS DN 36
Other benefits HibiaH| 42

1,151
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29. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Place and date of

29. TEMBEAT

Particulars of issued/ Effective interest
Principal activities and registered and paid held by the

Name of subsidiaries incorporation place of operation up capital Group
SE AR 32 TEEHR BT/ EMR FrEBEEHEMN
MEARERE HRR A EEE BRELFE BRER
Direct Interests:
iR
Potent Union Holdings Limited BVI, 18 March 2013 Investment holdings, BVI  USD100 100%
REZERAR DA RERAHS REER - 100%7T
=% RERLES
=RA+N\H
Indirect Interests:
RS
Hongtai Group (Int'l) Holding  Hong Kong, Investment holdings, HKD10,000 100%
Limited 22 June 2009 Hong Kong
RAEE (B AR BE ZTThE REER 10,000/ 7T
BRAE ~NAZ+Z=H b
Hongtai (China) Co., Ltd. Fujian, the PRC Design, manufacturing HKD120 million 100%

BR(FED)BRAF

Hongshen (Hubei) Textile

17 February 2004

PETEE
“ETE
—A++tH

Hubei, the PRC

and sales of fabrics
and cotton yarns,
the PRC
RET - RERIHE 1208887
ERHERY - PE

Manufacturing and RMB15 million 100%

Co., Ltd. 24 May 2012 sales of fabrics and
cotton yarns, the PRC
N A0 B EIE- 21 N B - FiE LB EAHE AREBISEETT
—E—_F w4 - PE
HFA-+WA
Hongtai (Hubei) Sales Hubei, the PRC Sales of fabrics and RMB2 million 100%
Co., Ltd. 8 August 2013 cotton yarns, the PRC
ARG EHEBR AR FEHE SHEE R R AREBET
AV VAN = I
30. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 30. EEHREIE
On 22 Jan 2015, the Company issued three-year bonds with RZE—RAF—AZ+=H  AAFETA
principal amount of HKD 84,000,000. The bonds are unsecured, £ %¥884,000,000 8 T = FHiEH - HEFE
interest bearing at a rate of 7% per annum and payable HFRERR  REMNEI%TERNEEY,

semiannually.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBEHE

OPERATING RESULTS ReEHE

Year ended 31 December
BE+-—A=1+—HLEE
2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-mFE  ZZT-=F - —T—F

Revenue — From continuing Wi — RERHERE

business (RMB’000) ALK TFT) 810,795 791,518 405,286 262,072
Gross profit — From continuing 5] — K BIFEL S

business (RMB’000) ERAKREFIT) 149,306 148,154 75,605 42,502
Gross profit margin — From ENX-RERERLE

continuing business Ei 18.4% 18.7% 18.7% 16.2%

Profit and total comprehensive QG B AFENS
income attributable to owners &K &2 E A 4258

of our Company (RMB’000) (AEEFr)
— From continuing business — REFELCEED 66,402 74,974 34,837 23,265
— From discontinued business — REDRIEE
s — — — 5,718
Net profit margin — From FR R — R RER
continuing business Ei 8.2% 9.5% 8.6% 8.9%
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET EHEEAER
The following table sets forth our assets/liabilities position as at 31 TRHEINEMAR-_ZT——F  —_F—_F  _F
December 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014: —=FRZTE-MF+_A=+—HNEE A&
S
As at 31 December
R+=ZA=+—H
2014 2013 2012 2011
—2-mE ZF=F ZFF ZFT—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT AREFIT AREFIT
Current assets MENVE B 501,925 323,596 206,780 275,372
Current liabilities MENEE 28,454 428,036 317,759 305,933
Net current assets/(liabilities) TEEE,/(AE)FE 213,470 (104,440) (110,979) (30,561)
Net assets BEEE 480,460 266,918 183,909 149,072
FINANCIAL INDICATORS MEER
Year ended 31 December
BE+-—A=+—HLEE
2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-mFE ZE-=F ZE—=F ZZT—F
Return on equity (%) (Note 1) f& [l R (%) (B7aE1) 13.8 28.1 18.9 19.4
Return on assets (%) (Note 2) BERTFRER(%) (Kit2) 6.6 9.1 6.5 6.2
Interest coverage (Note 3) MEeBER(HE3) 4.8 7.0 3.9 3.8
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY B i&HgEE

2013 2012 2011
—T—= —T——F —=——F
Current ratio (%) (Note 4) TMENLL (%) (H7t4) 75.6 65.1 90.0
Quick ratio (%) (Note 5) RBYELE(%) (H1aE5) 57.9 454 71.2
Debt to equity ratio (%) BRI (%)
(Note 6) (Htite6) 103.5 88.3 109.1
Gearing ratio (%) ERBELE(%)
(Note 7) (Htit7) 46.1 57.7 67.5
Notes: et -
(1) Return on equity for the years ended 31 December 2011, 2012, 2013 (1) ®HE-ZT——F - _T——F  —T-=F K

120 WANG TAI HOLDINGS LIMITED

and 2014 was calculated based on our total comprehensive income for
the respective year divided by the total equity of the respective year and
multiplied by 100%.

Return on assets for the years ended 31 December 2011, 2012, 2013
and 2014 was calculated based on our total comprehensive income for
the respective year divided by our total assets of the respective year and
multiplied by 100%.

Interest coverage ratio for the years ended 31 December 2011, 2012,
2013 and 2014 was calculated based on our operating profit for the
respective year divided by our finance costs for the respective year.

Current ratio as at 31 December 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014 were
calculated based on our current assets of the respective date divided by
our current liabilities of the respective date and multiplied by 100%.

Quick ratio as at 31 December 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014 were
calculated based on our current assets minus inventories as at the
respective date divided by our current liabilities as at the respective date
and multiplied by 100%.

Debt to equity ratio as at 31 December 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014
were calculated based on our total debts (being sum of our total
borrowings and amounts due to related parties and third parties) as at
the respective date divided by total equity as at the respective year and
multiplied by 100%.

Gearing ratio as at 31 December 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014 were
calculated based on our net debts (being total debts net of cash and
cash equivalents and restricted bank deposits) as at the respective date
divided by total equity as at the respective year and multiplied by 100%.
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Z—NE+ A=+ BILFENRABHRR -
NEEBFEEARACERUNEEFERERR
FEHFEIA100%ETE -

2 #HEZZ——F .—2—=-F -_FT—=FK=
T—MFE+ A=+ HIEFENEERRE -
NEEBEERERARERUNEBFEEELAER
EAHREIA100%51E -

B BEZ——F —_ZT——F. ._T—Z-FK_
Z-—NE+-A=+—BIFENNEBER
E&ﬁﬁirm SEMBRAEEFENREK A
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